END OF THIS AGE

God's Intervention on Planet Earth

By Ron McGatlin

Contents

Chapter 1 – Heaven's Intervention	2
Chapter 2 – Holy Ghost Invasion	6
Chapter 3 – The Beauty of Holiness	9
Chapter 4 – Love Bonds	12
Chapter 5 – Holy Fire	16
Chapter 6 – Love's Garden	20
Chapter 7 – Invasion of Love and Truth	23
Chapter 8 – Hearts Melted by Love Joined for Life	26
Chapter 9 – Pure Holy Love and the World	29
Chapter 10 – A New Day	32
Chapter 11 – Unrelenting Love	34
Chapter 12 – From the Foundation Up	38
Chapter 13 - Peace and Joy - Tabernacles	41
Chapter 14 - The Mother of Us All	45
Chapter 15 – The Goal of Life	50
Chapter 16 - Love Stronger than Death	54
Chapter 17 - Let Love Arise and Awaken Faith and Hope	57
Chapter 18 - A New Kind of Unity – The Oneness of Love	59
Chapter 19 - BEYOND "Revival Renewal Outpouring"	62
Chapter 20 - END OF THIS AGE	66

Chapter 1 - Heaven's Intervention

We, the people of Planet Earth, have entered into what is probably the most volatile season of change since the great flood of Noah's time. World changing events that will affect the entire planet are on the menu for the future of all nations.

Believe it or not, in the full scope of all things, the end result of the apocalyptic and cataclysmic events will be the best thing on Planet Earth since God formed the Garden of Eden and created Adam and Eve in it. The things coming forth lead to the fulfillment of Christ and all that he accomplished in His incarnate life, His death on the cross, and His resurrection.

This is not about doom and gloom. On the contrary the season ahead that has already begun will preface the most glorious reality of the brilliant works of Almighty God ever seen on Planet Earth.

Probably every thinking person knows that extreme times and changes for the nations of the world are inevitable. The problems of this world are glaringly plain. However, real solutions are not at all apparent by natural understanding. Humanity and world conditions are such that there appears no solution without an intervention from God Almighty to do something to change the course of the world.

Many prophetic men and women have been speaking for years about major changes coming to the nations of the world. In past decades many prophetic warnings about cleansing judgments from God have been coming forth that align with many biblical warnings.

The purpose of these events is not punishment for the earth or its people. The purpose of cleansing judgment from God is to bring change in our world – a cleansing or clearing of the land of all that is not of God both in us and in the world.

In the spiritual realm, a great shift or transformation from the present mindsets and ways of being and doing is taking place. **The light and love of God is brilliantly shining into the hearts of many believers**.

While at the same time the darkness has exploded across the world. The darkness has become deep darkness in and around the masses of ungodly people. One result of this is that Christ Jesus and His people on earth are more despised every day as the rate of increasing darkness continues to accelerate. The violent hatred for the name of Jesus and all who follow Him is becoming worldwide and increasingly intense.

The intervention of God is our only hope and our hope is not being disappointed.

The Undercover Intervention from Heaven

Under the cover of deep darkness, God has now begun what appears to be the most glorious magnificent move of God ever.

This undercover supernatural intervention of God is not subject to the masses of people or the whims of the religious minds of the naysayers. It is not fed by man. It is not driven or empowered by man. The natural eyes of man cannot even see it and the natural minds of man cannot understand it.

Since it is not seen by natural-minded man, it will not be merchandised. Natural man cannot start it and cannot stop it. This intervention move of God is unstoppable by man. Unlike other moves of God in recent history, this move will never go away. It will always increase and never decrease.

It is a rapidly spreading sovereign supernatural spiritual move of God by the Holy Ghost releasing the fire of the Spirit and the supernatural life of Christ Jesus into the lives of His people. It is the manifest presence of the living God in and among His people.

Great thick darkness is covering the earth. Deceiving spirits and other demonic activity is greatly increased across the world. People are readily and easily falling into any deceptive plot of the enemy. False teachings of the most extremely weird types are spreading among secular and religious people, especially the young people, on a scale never seen in modern history. Violence and perversions of every sort are becoming acceptable behavior. Many religious churches are infiltrated with occult practices. Witchcraft and various sorceries employing curses, spells and such have crept in among the young people in many church groups.

The media aimed at children and young adults is programming violence and deep darkness into the homes, streets, schools, playgrounds and every social or broadcast media. Sexual immorality and perversion is considered normal. Speaking curses and casting spells are common place. Evil darkness and hideously ugly is made out to be good and desirable. While pure, clean, and holy is made to seem hateful and undesirable. Family life and autonomy is near extinct. Christ Jesus and people of God are despised and are made out to be hate-filled ignorant tyrants. This is but a thumbnail description of some of the gross darkness covering the land.

It is under this thick darkness that the intervening move of God is pouring the pure holy love and power of God flow directly into the hearts and lives of God's humble people.

God is intervening both under and above the darkness.

Beneath the darkness God's brilliant light, love, and power is flowing to those who seek God and His kingdom with their whole hearts.

Above the darkness the fire of God is descending from heaven bringing fierce cleansing judgment to bring down everything that exalts itself against God. Every force of darkness and all that it has devised will crash and crumble to the ground. The fire of God will purge the earth of the great darkness. Destruction and devastation as described in the book of Revelation and other biblical passages will take place. The prophecy of Isaiah Chapter 2 is well fitting to this time.

In Chapter 2 of Isaiah the goal, the situation, and the process of God's latter time intervention are well described.

The Goal or End Result

2 Now it shall come to pass in the latter days That the mountain of the Lord's house Shall be established on the top of the mountains, And shall be exalted above the hills; And all nations shall flow to it. 3 Many people shall come and say,
"Come, and let us go up to the mountain of the Lord,
To the house of the God of Jacob;
He will teach us His ways,
And we shall walk in His paths."
For out of Zion shall go forth the law,
And the word of the Lord from Jerusalem.

4 He shall judge between the nations, And rebuke many people; They shall beat their swords into plowshares, And their spears into pruning hooks; Nation shall not lift up sword against nation, Neither shall they learn war anymore.

The Current Condition

6 For You have forsaken Your people, the house of Jacob, Because they are filled with eastern ways; They are soothsayers like the Philistines, And they are pleased with the children of foreigners.

7 Their land is also full of silver and gold, And there is no end to their treasures; Their land is also full of horses, And there is no end to their chariots.

8 Their land is also full of idols; They worship the work of their own hands, That which their own fingers have made. 9 People bow down, (to their idols), And each man humbles himself; Therefore do not forgive them.

The Cleansing Judgment

11 The lofty looks of man shall be humbled, The haughtiness of men shall be bowed down, And the Lord alone shall be exalted in that day.

12 For the day of the Lord of hosts Shall come upon everything proud and lofty' Upon everything lifted up— And it shall be brought low—

13 Upon all the cedars of Lebanon that are high and lifted up, And upon all the oaks of Bashan; 14 Upon all the high mountains, And upon all the hills that are lifted up;

15 Upon every high tower, And upon every fortified wall;

16 Upon all the ships of Tarshish,

And upon all the beautiful sloops.

17 The loftiness of man shall be bowed down, And the haughtiness of men shall be brought low; The Lord alone will be exalted in that day, 18 But the idols He shall utterly abolish.

Jesus taught of this day in Matthew Chapter 13. He spoke the parable of the tares and the field to the multitude. Later His disciples asked Jesus to explain the parable to them.

- 36 Then Jesus sent the multitude away and went into the house. And His disciples came to Him, saying, "Explain to us the parable of the tares of the field."
- 37 He answered and said to them: "He who sows the good seed is the Son of Man. 38 The field is the world, the good seeds are the sons of the kingdom, but the tares are the sons of the wicked one. 39 The enemy who sowed them is the devil, the harvest is the end of the age, and the reapers are the angels. 40 Therefore as the tares are gathered and burned in the fire, so it will be at the end of this age.
- 41 The Son of Man will send out His angels, and they will gather out of His kingdom all things that offend, and those who practice lawlessness, 42 and will cast them into the furnace of fire. There will be wailing and gnashing of teeth.
- 43 Then the righteous will shine forth as the sun in the kingdom of their Father. He who has ears to hear, let him hear!

You and I are alive in the time of these fulfillments beginning to come to pass in our world. And as hard as it might be for you to believe, we have a part in this sovereign move of God. There must be pure and holy mature sons of God in whom Christ Jesus fully dwells to bring forth, beyond the cleansing judgments, the new world governed by God. You and I are the seeds of Christ sown into this world for such a time as this.

Under the cover of darkness, the Holy Ghost is now invading our lives and our world with the life of Christ Jesus empowering His pure holy sons and daughters with His love, power, and wisdom to fulfill His works in this world. Christ living in our bodies where we once lived is indeed the hope of glory on Planet Earth.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 2 – Holy Ghost Invasion

A unique move of God is now invading the United States of America. It is unlike any previous move in America. It is not revival or renewal as we have seen in recent decades.

Awakenings, revivals, renewals, and outpourings have impacted America and many other nations of the world. Yet something different, something much deeper is bringing more change to the nations than anything has in the last one hundred years.

This move is unseen and undetected by people with natural minds and natural eyes. Natural eyes will not see, nor will our natural ears hear, nor will it enter the hearts of natural minded men, the things that God is bringing forth. However, God is now revealing them to those who have laid down their natural lives to worship Him in the true beauty of holiness - to live and walk in His Spirit. This work of God is imparted through His Holy Spirit.

This extreme world-changing move of God will not be on the national news media. For the most part the traditional church systems and large denominations will not be aware of this mostly unseen mighty move of God. Unlike previous moves it will not be recognized as a separate identity or stream or denomination but will flow unseen to affect every heart of every person who is willing and obedient to let their lives become worship in the beauty of holiness.

The Ghost Ship

Several weeks ago I was in the Sprit and was given a powerful spiritual vision. In the vision I knew that I was looking out over the Atlantic Ocean from the coast of North Carolina. It was a very dark night, and the ocean was calm and the surface almost undistinguishable in the darkness of the night. In the distance I saw an ancient style sailing vessel that was aglow with a fire but not like with blazes of flame. It was like a golden glow of fire. I could see several masts and lots of rigging all aglow, but no sails were hoisted to drive the ship.

The ship seemed to be supernaturally gliding rapidly toward the shore line of the outer banks of the east coast of America. I could not even tell for sure that the ship was in the water or gliding above the surface since it moved so swiftly in the darkness without any visible wave action at all.

(At this point I need to let you know that I am originally from Texas and knew almost nothing of the legends or folk lore of the coastal area regarding the many stories of sunken ships, pirates, and tales of ghost ships including one of a flaming sailing vessel. I was completely unfamiliar with legends of ghost ships, etc.)

Back to the vision – As the ship glided closer I could see what looked like glowing beings, like people or angels leaning out over the sides of the ship as if excitedly looking ahead at the shore line they were approaching. I spoke out, "God, what is this thing that looks like a ghost of a ship?" I heard in reply, "It is a HOLY GHOST SHIP."

I was made aware that there is a sovereign move of the Holy Spirit invading the United States coming in under the cover of darkness to the outer banks of the east coast and moving inland and swiftly across the nation.

In the vision I was then lifted up and saw much of the shoreline. The shore line took on a golden color but not as bright as the ship had been. It was a more metallic golden look as it invaded the coves, peninsulas, and islands of the outer banks and moved on westward. I was aware that the coming of great justice into the land was involved in this move. Places where there had been great historical injustices and atrocities were first to receive the powerful transforming work of the Holy Ghost.

I customarily have used the term Holy Spirit instead of the term Holy Ghost. Since this vision it is in my spirit to return to using the older term of Holy Ghost. I became mildly interested in what the difference might be if any. As we have used the names, there is not a significant difference. Taking a look in the English dictionary at the words "spirit" and "ghost," there is some difference there. The word "ghost" is defined as a disembodied spirit usually of a departed person. The word "spirit" can refer to many types of spirits. For me now the term Holy Ghost has to do with the Spirit of Christ Jesus coming to abide in His Body on earth. Selah.

The Body of Christ is a place for the Spirit of Christ Jesus and the Father to abide and finish the work of redemption and restoration of the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven. Selah.

The light of the fire of God is gliding into our lives, under the cover of the dark night of this world.

This sovereign move is unseen and undetected in the natural because it is an inner move of God coming in through the darkness of this age. A precious inner working of the fire and light of God filling our hearts and lives with pure holy love, peace, and joy is transforming the intent and the abundance of the heart of those being transfigured by this move. Worship becomes as natural and as vital to life as breathing. Holiness becomes as effortless and refreshing as drinking clean clear cool water. God's righteousness is imparted into us as the light pours the life-giving Spirit of Christ Jesus into our hearts.

People who have suffered serious injustice in the past are receiving an invasion of God's healing love and great joy of the Lord. Healing of the spirit, soul, and body is as natural and easy as taking a walk in a well-kept garden at sunrise. God's love is both peaceful and stimulating drawing us to one another with intense desire to serve and bless one another.

Without effort we truly love God with intense passion and love one another. In this pure holy experience of the invasion of the Holy Ghost into our beings, almost nothing remains the same as it was in the past. Every good thing we have received from God in the past is increased and intensified. One of the most valuable characteristics of the invasion of the Spirit is that the enduring mixtures of religion and secularism are simply vanishing from our being.

Assignments and Alignments are Being Changed

There is not retirement in the kingdom of God. There is instead Holy Ghost's "re-firement" for a whole new assignment in the new kingdom of God order of life. Our previous assignments may have been productive and rewarding in our past life in dealing with religion and secularism mixed with true Spirit-led ministry and life in the mercy of God for the past season of transitioning. Many of God's people are finding their past assignments are being canceled and new assignments are being made by the Holy Ghost.

The new assignments are always LOVE-based instead of based on need or religious order. **God's LOVE in us is the order.** What we could not make work with church system order even based on biblical word, will supernaturally flow into order by the pure holy love of God in and among His people.

Our lives may be tested as our souls resist the change and seek to challenge us in adjusting to the new assignment. For some of us the changes may seem abrupt and harsh to our old mind sets. Our nature may be to resist change. Our soul may want to know all the circumstance and details and remain in charge by approving or disapproving the change. We simply must allow the gracious mercy of God to encourage us in His love to fully surrender to that which God is doing. It becomes easy, because the grace of God will make us miserable in our old unchanged situation.

Changes of alignments will come with the change of assignments. It may happen that suddenly places where we were fruitfully connected simply disappear. Relationships that were productive and good seem to suddenly be gone. There may or may not be problems or human disorder, yet the relationship suddenly is just not as it was. At the same time intense love and desire to closely connect with other people or groups or situations arise within us by the Holy Ghost.

Some may have been feeling dissatisfaction in a place of relationship and service. By the Holy Ghost, those feelings will either turn into fresh love and peace, or they will suddenly seem smothering and unbearable until we are realigned in our new situations.

Our new assignments and alignments by the Holy Ghost invasion are part of the preparation for the most significant move of world-cleansing cataclysmic events in recorded history. At the same time the covert invasion of the Holy Ghost is bringing the beauty of holiness in the lives of God's people, there is an overt power move of God destroying the pride and loftiness of man. Everything that lifts itself against God will be brought down as the natural world is shaken beyond measure.

Living a long comfortable life is not the first priority of our hearts. Living in oneness with God through the Holy Ghost will cause our first priority to be that of fully accomplishing the purposes for which we were sent to this earth.

There is no doubt that we live in a major season of the work of God transforming the world to the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven. All of our assignments and alignments in some way relate to our purpose of life on Planet Earth. The purpose for each of our lives is in some way related to the glory of worshipping God in the beauty of holiness.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Rom 5:25.

Chapter 3 – The Beauty of Holiness

Give to the Lord the glory due His name; Bring an offering, and come before Him. Oh, worship the Lord in the beauty of holiness!

The beauty of worshiping the Lord in holiness is the presence of God among and within His people.

Worship is the one thing that we can give to our God who has everything.

The worship and praise from mankind is the one thing God does not do for Himself. We are created to fulfill His desire as a wife to her husband and a child to his father. Even the smallest amount of unfaithfulness in the Bride corrupts the true holiness and intimate oneness with Holy God. Any amount of rebelliousness in a child of God disrupts the beauty of holiness in true worship to our God. No, it does not interrupt His love for us. However, it does affect our true worship in the beauty of holiness. Unfaithfulness and rebelliousness are symptoms of straying from the pure holiness of the presence of Christ living His life fully within us.

In His presence, God's true unconditional love is implanted in us by the Spirit of Christ Jesus producing perfect obedience to God's every desire. Because we love Him we have a heart filled with an overflowing loving desire to please Him and never dishonor Him in any way.

Our greatest joy and fulfillment in life is to worship and praise Him and experience His manifest presence filling and saturating us with His love. This is worshiping the Lord in the beauty of holiness, and there is nothing in this life of more value than this true worship.

Our past life and all of its painful wounds are healed as we worship in the beauty of holiness. Disease and deformities can miraculously be healed. Fear and its entire depressive and debilitating works are removed in the presence of His love.

Impartation of a sound mind and fresh light for life is implanted in us as we worship and praise our Lord in the beauty of holiness. The joy of the Lord strengthens us to be and do anything and everything that He desires. Our hearts are glad with His presence with us even when the world hates us and persecutes us. This is the kingdom of God in action, the rule of God on earth in and through His people.

Please allow me to speak personally from my own heart-felt desire for a moment.

My heart's desire, that I believe is from the Lord, is that the remaining days of my life here on this earth are characterized by worshipping and praising God in the beauty of holiness. Anything in my life that does not give Him glory and praise His name is unprofitable and will not continue to occupy time or energy in my life. I cannot speak for others or judge what they do or believe, but my desire is to become more of a worshiper in all that I am and all that I do.

Personally, I am not willing to go on in this life trying to teach people about God and His kingdom that have other agendas and desires. My life is too short to spend in anything that does not facilitate the pure holy worship and praise of God in the beauty of holiness.

The Lord is bringing a fresh new move of inner purity and holiness. This is a mostly hidden revival by the Holy Spirit that is moving sovereignly into the hearts of His people.

God is saying that there is no need for us to apologize for speaking His truth in His love.

There is no room left for people of religious pretending who speak that which they know is untrue and call it socially acceptable politeness or only little white lies. This comes from a churchy form of religious political correctness. Feigning agreement to maintain social acceptance and voicing insincere flattering words to enhance relationships and positions.

There cannot be true worship in the beauty of holiness without openness and transparency first with God and then with those around us with whom we join in worship. There is not space any longer for the acceptance of "Christian masks" of religious pretension and false facades of churchy political correctness.

The rampant denial of the Holy Spirit is no longer an acceptable position. The Holy Spirit of God implanting our spirit, soul, and body with the very life of Christ Jesus is the imperative goal and purpose of life. True worship includes praising God with our every breath and all the strength within us in our every endeavor in this life.

There is not room left for the tolerance of religious debate and ridicule from well-meaning but troubled and competitive voices of confusion. Those who love their religion and their own brand of "truth" will receive the reward of their lives and beliefs whether good or bad.

There is no place in truly worshipping God in the beauty of holiness for the hierarchical political systems of church rule. There is not even one moment to spend catering to the religious church rule of dominance over other people in the false religious systems such as clergy over laity and the worship of church leaders.

The pure love of God poured out upon us in His intimate presence while worshiping in the beauty of holiness washes away all of this stuff and produces a people who are truly holy as He is holy. In His presence there is no more debate over grace and law or eschatology or any other doctrinal positions.

Truly, none of that matters in His presence as we truly worship in the beauty of holiness. We simply know Him and know that He knows us, and His love provides complete assurance that everything regarding our lives now and in the life to come will be perfectly right for us in His presence.

Whether eschatological events turn out to take place this way or that way or some other way is not a great concern if our lives are continuously consumed in His presence now in true worship in the beauty of holiness. However, all that we really need to know will be made known to us, if we are one with Him. We can walk with Him through whatever is ahead in His peace that goes well beyond understanding or knowing. We don't really need to know all that will take place in the future, if we truly walk with God as one. If He truly is one with us, we know absolutely that whatever the future holds, He will take care of us and will never leave us or forsake us.

There is not room for continued debates of theology or eschatology. The time of tolerance of man-centered religion devised from the tree of knowledge is past.

The crystal clear purity and holiness of the presence of God is now flowing into the hearts of God's chosen people. The beautiful brightness of God now shining forth into our hearts and lives brings fresh dynamic life that sets us apart from the rest of the world. There is becoming a great distinction between God's people and the world. This is the coming of Christ in His people establishing His kingdom on earth as it is in heaven.

There are no more games, no more magic tricks, no more manipulation, and no more leaning on the religious or secular ways to supplement the works of God in our lives. "Christian witchcraft" of making things to happen our way and calling it God will no longer be tolerated and cannot coexist with the presence of God in the beauty of holiness.

The beautiful jewels of God's purified holy people reflect a brilliant aurora of the pure light of God that draws the harvest of those who will come. While those who will not come are greatly offended by the intense light and become filled with fear and rage.

The pearls of God will not be cast before those of the secular or religious worlds with appetites for self-aggrandizement. Rather they will be quietly implanted into the humble and meek children of God who will worship God with all their hearts in the beauty of holiness.

Like poles of a magnet, the love of God is binding us to Him and to one another. While at the same time this same love is causing separation with others.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Rom 5:25.

Chapter 4 – Love Bonds

In this season of preparation for the increase of significant and extreme events of change that we are now entering, God is establishing relationships and connections for the new order and function of the Body and Bride of Christ.

The invasion of the Holy Ghost is establishing a new paradigm of spiritual governance and order replacing the existing organizations and networks that are established and function primarily by human understanding and natural methods.

The Spirit of God by His presence with and within His people is transforming us into Spirit minded spirit beings enlightened and empowered in the Spirit of Christ Jesus to live and move from the one source of real life in the Spirit.

The pure and holy love of God flowing into His people by the Holy Ghost dissolves away any remaining residue of impurities in our motives, methods, and habits.

In the hearts of His people that are broken with love for our Lord, Savior, and King, all hardness is melted into pure love for God and for His people. Holy passion is birthed into our souls to guide us by the slightest movement of Spirit God. The loving passion within us brings us to quick obedience without hesitation or reservation.

In love with God, we become sensitive to His leading and hear His guidance clearly. We are led by love to connect to others who are abiding in His presence, and we are caused to be disconnected from some others. The cause of disconnection does not always involve something wrong in the person or group. It may well be that for reasons well beyond our knowledge; we are simply to be connected differently. It is the wisdom of Almighty God that designs the new spiritual order of love-based relationships.

The establishment of love bonds with people who we are to be connected to can be almost instant. Our natural minds trained by previous negative experiences may try to tell us to wait, to hold back until the relationship is proven to be based in the real love of God by actions and deeds. However, in this season of the manifest presence of God, the wind of the Spirit will move us about, and the inner leading of Christ Jesus by the Holy Spirit can instantly complete the love connection that joins the cells and parts of the body into oneness with God and one another. To the individual person this may feel like a passionate desire to give to and bless the individual or group. It is simply the passionate love of God in us moving us into the places of mutual provision in the approaching time of great shaking in this world.

Godly Loyalty in Love Bonds

Godly loyalty is not the same thing as natural human loyalty and is quite different from the loyalty in the church systems that are fading away. Natural loyalty such as that observed in the man-structured church systems was mostly faithfulness to a man, office, institution, religious order, or a system of theology. Usually the practical rudiments of this situation can be summed up in this old saying, "you scratch my back and I'll scratch yours." In other words individuals come to the person or system to get something they need or want. They are received because they provide something the person or institution needs or wants. Only as long as needs and wants are being met is the natural loyalty operational.

The individual is usually seeking some form of personal provision. It may be a perceived spiritual need or an emotional need or a physical need or whatever. The institution and leaders need the individual to loyally support and serve them. This need-based loyalty will usually only last as long as needs are being met. Though it may meet some needs, it is never permanently or fully satisfying to the inner needs of the souls and spirits of the people who are involved.

Godly loyalty is love based. God's love in us – love from God and for God and His people. This loyalty is a spiritual work of the Holy Ghost that delivers the fullness of provision from God in the form of love. It is a love relationship in which one would lay down his or her life for another. Christ Jesus laid down His life for us by love. That same love produces the same kind of loyalty in us that we will lay down our lives.

In the fullness of His life in us and His presence among us, we have no frustration from unmet needs or wants. We are spiritually abundantly supplied and filled to overflowing. Fountains of living water flow from our inner being, and we have no reason to seek after provisions. We are always loyal to God first and foremost above all else.

We are set free from seeking after provisions for this life. We are truly able to SEEK FIRST THE KINGDOM OF GOD AND HIS RIGHTEOUSNESS AND ALL THESE THINGS ARE ADDED TO US.

In our past religious natural-minded state, most of us were focused on seeking provision either from God or man or other natural or even hidden demonic sources. For the most part Christians sought spiritual provisions from religion and religious institutions. Also for the most part, they sought after natural provisions from jobs and business operations. More recently many people seek their provision from government entitlements or handouts. Some ministry-minded people seek provision for their lives by doing ministry activity. The problem with these is not in the receiving of provision. The problem is in the seeking. Selah. None of these are God's best plan for us.

By our love relationship in the Holy Ghost, God is opening our hearts and lives to the reality of the kingdom of God and how His righteousness works in us to produce the provisions of God from heaven. Only as the Holy Ghost brings the presence of God in and among us to consume us in His love can we truly perceive what is meant by seeking first the kingdom and His righteousness.

Many believers in the passing era of systemized "church" have been greatly disappointed when they tried to seek first the kingdom and His righteousness. It simply did not work in their lives like they thought it would. It did not work because they were not seeking the real kingdom of God.

The problem is that we have simply not truly known the reality of the kingdom of God. In this season of other kingdoms coming down to make room for the real kingdom to come forth, many are seeing and hearing the gospel of the kingdom as Jesus preached and demonstrated it on earth. Some others are coming into alignment with the good news of the kingdom without really realizing what they are doing. They are simply following the guidance of the Spirit of Christ Jesus in them by the Holy Spirit. The presence of God within is leading them to lay down the limitations of previous religious beliefs and open their lives to the marvelous work of

the Holy Ghost invading their hearts and lives, and eventually the world around them.

Kingdom-minded people of God will no longer be drawn into erroneous or incomplete works of religion. Only the pure love of God by the Holy Spirit within them can create bonds of connection and relationships with God and one another. There are no other allegiances above the bond of love with God and His people. Love is the bond that draws together and holds together the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven.

Religious debate and demonic intervention cannot separate or divide that which God is bonding together in His all-powerful love. Neither death nor anything in this life or in heaven, not depth nor height nor any other created thing can separate what God has put together in the bond of His love. This is what the Holy Ghost invasion is delivering afresh under the cover of darkness into the hearts of His people – the seeds of Christ in us sown into the ashes of this world to bring forth the beauty of holiness. Worship Him with all we have, all we are, and all we do in the beauty of holiness.

1 "The Spirit of the Lord God is upon Me, Because the Lord has anointed Me To preach good tidings to the poor; He has sent Me to heal the brokenhearted, To proclaim liberty to the captives, And the opening of the prison to those who are bound;

2 To proclaim the acceptable year of the Lord, And the day of vengeance of our God; To comfort all who mourn,

3 To console those who mourn in Zion, To give them beauty for ashes, The oil of joy for mourning, The garment of praise for the spirit of heaviness; That they may be called trees of righteousness, The planting of the Lord, that He may be glorified."

4 And they shall rebuild the old ruins, They shall raise up the former desolations, And they shall repair the ruined cities, The desolations of many generations. Isaiah 61:1-4

During and beyond the apocalyptic and cataclysmic events of world cleansing judgment, the mature sons of God (all those in whom Christ Jesus fully lives) will arise in the glory of God to rebuild the old ruins with the pure holy reality of the unhindered rule of God on earth as it is in heaven. The entire world shall worship God in the beauties of holiness. All things are gathered into Christ Jesus and delivered to the Father a glorious kingdom.

Yes Lord here am I, send me.

I receive the fullness of Your love and gladly lay my life before You to arise only by Your bidding, consumed in your love. No longer to live of this world but as one with You in the love bond of oneness to bring forth Your glory

from heaven on earth. I worship You all the days of my life. You are worthy, oh Lord. You are glorious, and You are Love now and forever. Thank you for the beauty of your holiness invading earth. Amen.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Rom 5:25.

Chapter 5 – Holy Fire

God is doing an awesome work in our day. In my opinion it is on a broader scale than ever before in history and will soon become the deepest and most holy work since the first century.

In June of 2007, I wrote the following: In the last two days I have had two encounters in which I believe God is imparting something very big to be shared.

Yesterday morning (June 19, 2007) I settled back in my recliner to commune with the Lord. I began to see a vision. I was standing on a high place looking out over a large area. The sky was colored as if it was sunset or sunrise, but I did not see the sun. It was a pleasant scene.

Then from my right I saw a thin stream of black cloud or smoke flowing into the area before me. It began to turn or swirl, so that it began to build up in the area instead of flowing on past. It continued to pile up or gather until the whole area was in black darkness. Powerful bolts of lightning zapped forth from the darkness in a straight line to the ground. Where the lightening hit the ground massive explosions occurred, and from the explosions fires spread on the land. Very black smoke rose up from the fires and joined the darkness. The darkness became so thick and black that only the brightest flashes and fires could be seen.

A large bright, semi dome, oval shaped, white light appeared and seemed to be entering the darkness from above. The light began to flow downward from the bright oval like some type substance rather than like natural light. It extended out from the main light to the sides a short distance and then curved downward forming like a huge dome of the light substance. As it continued to flow, the light substance began to consume the darkness. It was very bright at the top and appeared less bright in the lower portions as it came down. In a while the darkness had been partially consumed, and I could see a portion of the ground for the first time since the darkness came in. It was now very barren, mostly rock and rough. There was some dry dust or ash but no hint of moisture or life of any kind. Then I began to see colorful jewels scattered about the scorched looking rock and dust. And the vision ended. As yet I do not know what this entirely means. But in light of what happened later, it seemed significant.

The next morning just after four, I was shaken awake. I awoke with the presence and power of God surging through my body. My body was reacting as though one would imagine it would if large amounts of electrical energy were flowing through it in surges. I began to hear the words HOLY FIRE! HOLY FIRE! HOLY FIRE! — over and over again. I was given another vision. I was meeting with a denominational pastor and a small group of his associates after attending a meeting in their church. At one point in the conversation, I became sick feeling because of the lack of spiritual life among the group. The conversation was something about money, or the lack of it, and the desperate financial condition of the church. Suddenly I told the group I could not continue and that I was leaving. I added, "You have nothing; you cannot even handle your money things, and that was all you had. Your fire is gone." I looked at my wife, who was sitting off to the side, and got up to leave.

The pastor stood up and asked me to please wait and have dinner with him and his wife and talk with them some more about their condition. I agreed. In the next part of the vision we were walking together toward the door to leave the restaurant where we had finished eating, and I looked at them, thanked them for dinner, and told them with very anointed words that they had lost their fire and were not able to do anything because they had lost the fire of God that they once had. The pastor's wife began to cry loudly and wailed out at almost a scream. The pastor was convulsing with great sobs of sadness but not making a sound. There were a lot of people in the restaurant, and they all began to weep and cry out loud with great sadness.

I came out of the vision knowing that God wants to do something powerful regarding the denominational and institutional churches. My heart was broken for the pastor and his wife and all the people. I am still weeping for the precious people of God who have been robbed of the fire of God. The darkness had slipped in and covered the land, and they did not even know the fire had left them. They were so heartbroken when it was revealed to them by the Spirit. The vision ended, but I believe there is a desperate hunger among the multitudes of our brothers and sisters for HOLY FIRE one more time.

HOLY, HOLY, HOLY FIRE!!! PURE HOLY FIRE IS COMING TO DESTROY MIXTURE!!!!

In the recent past the fire of God from heaven has touched earth in many places around the globe. Miracles and massive numbers coming to Christ in Argentina, stadiums filled for prayer and worship in Columbia, outpourings of Father's love bringing renewal in Canada, powerful repentance in Florida, powerful outpourings in Missouri, awesome worship in Australia just to name a few of many spots. All across the world heavenly fire has brought spots of revival, renewal, and transformation. This recent worldwide move of God created more worship, prayer, and vital commitments to God than ever before known in our world. Multitudes of conferences – many mega-churches of tens of thousands – multitudes of people lifting their arms toward heaven in worship – others kneeling and falling prostrate before God – hundreds of thousands, if not millions, of house church groups spreading across the land – unprecedented interest in following God in business and the work place – worldwide mass media proclaiming a Christian message – all this and much more are a part of the past several decades of a major move of God.

This move ushered in the return of the prophetic and apostolic ministry and empowered the evangelist, shepherd, and teaching ministries with fire. The gospel of the kingdom of God that was veiled or lost for centuries has been reinstated in the world. Reformation was visible across the world. God was at work in a mighty way bringing a massive change to Planet Earth.

YET, THESE WONDERFUL WORKS CONTAIN MIXTURE FROM THE WORLD AND RELIGION.

From the beginning of the new Pentecostal experience through all the charismatic

renewals and revivals God has poured out His Spirit with great mercy upon flesh. The anointing of God has been poured out upon impure vessels. The fire, to some degree, did increase purity in the people upon whom it came, but impurities remained. Remaining impurities of flesh and religion were mostly not seen or recognized by the people of God. The glowing fire of the glorious miracles and worship were the focus and not the underlying unseen impurities of flesh and darkness.

THE NEW OUTPOURING BEGINNING IN THIS SEASON IS A HOLY FIRE. GOD IS SENDING AN INVASION OF INTENSELY HOLY, HOLY, HOLY FIRE.

Holy fire is beginning a great impartation for purification. Underlying impurities are being exposed and dissolved by pure LOVE. No fleshly attitudes will remain and those who make provision for the flesh in their ministries will dissolve. NONE will remain with self-seeking impurities or carnality of any kind. The Holy Fire of His pure love invasion leaves no room for anything else. The Holy Fire will consume all darkness among the people of God. This is not a fire only for the world; this is HOLY FIRE for the elders, the apostles, prophets, evangelist, shepherds, teachers, and all who name the name of Jesus.

This fire is much like the fire of the first century in the time of Ananias and Sapphira. It is more intense than the fire of the great repentance revivals and the Holy Spirit outpourings that brought spots of revival and renewal fires in recent decades. Holy fire cuts like a two-edged sword to the dividing of soul and spirit, and of joints and marrow. The massive systems of mixture are being destroyed; all chaff and stubble is under fires of purification.

Joel 2:2 A day of darkness and gloominess, A day of clouds and thick darkness, Like the morning clouds spread over the mountains....

Mal 3:1-6: "Behold, I send My messenger, And he will prepare the way before Me. And the Lord, whom you seek, Will suddenly come to His temple, Even the Messenger of the covenant, In whom you delight. Behold, He is coming," Says the LORD of hosts. "But who can endure the day of His coming? And who can stand when He appears? For He is like a refiner's fire And like launderer's soap. He will sit as a refiner and a purifier of silver; He will purify the sons of Levi, And purge them as gold and silver, That they may offer to the LORD An offering in righteousness.

"Then the offering of Judah and Jerusalem Will be pleasant to the LORD, As in the days of old, As in former years.

And I will come near you for judgment; I will be a swift witness Against sorcerers, Against adulterers, Against perjurers, Against those who exploit wage earners and widows and orphans, And against those who turn away an alien; Because they do not fear Me," Says the LORD of hosts.

"For I am the LORD, I do not change; Therefore you are not consumed, O sons of Jacob.

Mal 3:17 4:3: "They shall be Mine," says the LORD of hosts, "On the day that I make them My jewels. And I will spare them As a man spares his own son who serves him." Then you shall again discern between the righteous and the wicked, between one who serves God And one who does not serve Him.

"For behold, the day is coming, Burning like an oven, And all the proud, yes, all who do wickedly will be stubble. And the day which is coming shall burn them up," Says the LORD of hosts, "That will leave them neither root nor branch.

But to you who fear My name The Sun of Righteousness shall arise With healing in His wings; And you shall go out And grow fat like stall-fed calves.

You shall trample the wicked, For they shall be ashes under the soles of your feet On the day that I do this," Says the LORD of hosts.

Joel 2:25-29: "So I will restore to you the years that the swarming locust has eaten, The crawling locust, The consuming locust, And the chewing locust, My great army which I sent among you. You shall eat in plenty and be satisfied, And praise the name of the LORD your God, Who has dealt wondrously with you; And My people shall never be put to shame. Then you shall know that I am in the midst of Israel: I am the LORD your God And there is no other. My people shall never be put to shame.

"And it shall come to pass afterward That I will pour out My Spirit on all flesh; Your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, Your old men shall dream dreams, Your young men shall see visions. And also on My menservants and on My maidservants I will pour out My Spirit in those days.

Rev 22:20-21: He who testifies to these things says, "Surely I am coming quickly." Amen. Even so, come, Lord Jesus!

Beyond the cleansing judgments, the renewed world will be as a garden of God in which His heavenly ways will rule by His love across the world. The glory of God shall fill the earth.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Rom 5:25.

Chapter 6 – Love's Garden of Righteousness, Peace, and Joy

This season in which we now live probably has a much more profound historical significance than most people recognize. Only with Holy Spirit enlightenment and revelation can we begin to really know what God is doing and thereby more fully understand the times in which we live.

There are now at least two distinctly different levels of God's intervention and working with mankind.

God's love is like a magnet. The love of God is a force that draws some but repels others. When God's love comes near people of one polarity, there is a strong drawing to God and then to one another. However, if the love of God in the Holy Ghost comes near people of the other polarity, they are instantly repelled.

When the power of God's love carried by the Holy Ghost comes near a group of people, there will be two distinctly different reactions. Those with a polarity of humble emptiness and spiritual hunger are drawn to God and His love. Connection is made and an impartation of love, righteousness, peace, and joy along with power and wisdom flowing into them.

Others with a polarity of pride and fullness who are not hungry for God are repelled by God's love. Separation takes place and an impartation of deception begins to rule the life of the person. Turning away from the manifest presence of God's love in the Holy Spirit will always open the door for deception.

In a secular or religious environment where there is NOT a strong presence of God's love in the Holy Spirit, there will be an atmosphere of natural thinking and natural relationships. The natural relationships may or may not be religious in nature. The people may know about God and seek to serve Him. In this environment the people of both polarities can function in a somewhat peaceful cooperation.

However, when an increased intervention of the manifest presence of God in the Holy Spirit pours out pure holy love over the entire group, the drawing and repelling will begin bringing a separation among the people who have different polarities.

Those who are repelled cannot see their lack of love and usually strongly believe that the other group has been drawn away into gross error by strange spirits. Being apart from the strong presence of God in the Holy Spirit, they will receive strong delusions that open them to cunningly devised deceptions. Their deceptions seem so much like the truth that it is difficult for many to discern what is really going on.

Supernatural power will work with the deceived people doing miracles that draw large crowds that will follow after them into the same strong delusions. This is the highly visible false revival type atmosphere that further makes room and provision for the darkness and perversions of this season. This is a devious counterfeit of the real outpouring of the Holy Spirit and the love of God bringing the miracles of Christ Jesus to the world. Many people are further driven from the real when the counterfeit is uncovered. Without the pure love and guidance of the Holy Spirit, they will see all works of miracles including the true works from God as part of the counterfeit.

2 Thessalonians: 2: 9-12: The coming of the lawless one will be in accordance with how Satan works. He will use all sorts of displays of power through signs and

wonders that serve the lie, 10 and all the ways that wickedness deceives those who are perishing. They perish because they refused to love the truth and so be saved. 11 For this reason God sends them a powerful delusion so that they will believe the lie 12 and so that all will be condemned who have not believed the truth but have delighted in wickedness.

There is also another part of those who have received strong delusion that are the ones stuck in the mud of dead religion. They are just as deceived as the counterfeit miracle working crowd pleasers. The stuck in the mud group go through their religious rituals and ceremonies while allowing every form of sinful worldly perversion to take over the minds of the people. They proclaim peace while the enemy takes their lives and their children's lives, and there is no peace (Jeremiah 6:14).

God's answer to all this is to send an untouchable undercover Holy Ghost intervention.

This intervention is unseen and untouched by the deceived religious and secular groups that have locked themselves into the strong delusions. They cannot even see the real move of God gliding in beneath the darkness imparting the pure holy love of God that implants the whole council of the truth of Christ Jesus alive and well in a people consumed by the love of God in the Holy Ghost.

In small groups in secluded places, the presence of God fills the hearts and lives of the people. In seclusion unseen be the marauding masses, miracles of healing of every sort and miracles of provision in the glory of His presence are happening. Also as the people go out one by one and two by two the undercover miraculous works of God are with them. Mercy and grace are carried to all who God directs them to minister to among those they encounter in their daily lives. Loving, humble leaders are raised up among the people without the fanfare of man's hands but ordained by the hands of God for the work of assisting people into the reality of Christ Jesus in and with them by the Holy Spirit.

God is love, and God is Spirit. When the Spirit of God descends upon a person or a gathering of people, love permeates them. The spiritual liquid fire of God's perfect love fills and saturates everything under His Holy Spirit canopy of love.

Spirit God imparts the pure love of His life into our spirit making our spirit and His Spirit to become one Spirit.

We are spirit-beings who live in a body and have a soul. Our spirit-being receives Spirit God and becomes the life of God in our bodies.

We become His love, His righteousness, His peace, and His joy. Sin becomes a foreign concept as our life becomes one with His life.

Our wellbeing is no longer determined by natural circumstances. We are spirit beings alive in the Spirit of Christ, and the Spirit of Christ is alive in us.

Spirit reality is greater than natural temporal reality. The natural was made and consists by the Spirit. Ruling and reigning with Christ is God's Spirit abiding in and becoming one with our spirit. What Christ believes and does in our hearts is greater and more powerful than created reality. Creation is affected by and ordered by the attributes of Christ Jesus in His body on earth.

In our designed and fully restored state, we are the Body of Christ, the temple of God on earth – a place for Him to abide and interact with the natural world to bring forth His plan and will for Planet Earth and all that is upon it.

All the evil disobedience and rebellion against God and His perfect plan for Planet Earth must be dissolved. Myriads of powerful holy angels are released to work with those in whom Christ fully abides in cleansing the earth of all that opposes God and in bringing forth His love garden of righteousness, peace, and joy in the Holy Ghost.

There is no doubt whatsoever that God in man is releasing the rule of love on earth to replace the defeated rule of evil in this world.

Once again, as in the Garden of Eden, the beautiful world ruled and ordered by God's love will show forth His glory in perfect righteousness, peace, and joy in the Holy Spirit. This world will be a showplace to all creation of the King of Glory. All of this is planted in the hearts of God's kingdom people and will never stop until it is fully established in the everlasting glory of God.

There is no end to the increase of His kingdom that is coming forth like a garden full of seed underground awaiting the springtime to grow forth and fill all the earth with its fruit. This move of God is the sprouting of the seed of the kingdom of His love underground. The living seed that is fully alive and vibrant with the fullness of Christ and His kingdom. This is the big one – the unseen work that will suddenly arise in the glory of God beyond the cataclysmic cleansing judgments of all that lifts itself against God

The fire of God's love will destroy all that is of the deceptions of the above ground counterfeit works. The Lord will make it clear that He never knew those that are proud and filled and have no hunger for Him (Mat 7:21-23). Every tree that God has not planted will be cut down.

Presumption is not faith but a certain sense of human entitlement that demands of God. It leads to the delusion that man's control of his own destiny is a good thing and that all is well. God will often allow what the person or group has presumed to come to them but not for their edification. On the contrary, it will be for their ruination. Their presumptions upon the promises of God without the process of cleansing and obedience will only lead to more delusion and eventual dissolution.

The same fire of God's love fills, sustains, and empowers those who are humble, empty of self and hungry for God and His kingdom on earth as it is in heaven.

The intervention of God has begun in the visible world in the cleansing judgments of God. And at the same time, under the cover of the darkness, the invasion of the Holy Ghost is intervening to complete the humble and hungry people of God. The pure holy love of God in the Holy Ghost is empowering and establishing the humble mature sons and daughters as seeds of God's kingdom to replenish the earth with the glory of God.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Gal 5:25.

Chapter 7 - Invasion of Love and Truth

As people of God come together, they may be coming from different places of service and activity as well as different geographical locations and cultural situations. They may be at different levels of spiritual growth in moving toward becoming mature sons of God. Yet, they can all become as of one Spirit and one mind as the Holy Spirit comes into the gathering like a bright fog and settles upon the gathering releasing the all-consuming love of God's presence filling every heart from within and saturating every person from without in pure holy love.

Hearts melt in the love of His manifest presence. Love flowing into all the wounded and damaged places of the soul brings healing. Pain is turned into love. Rock fences of religious boundaries and theological positions melt away in the pure love of God's presence with us. Agendas that were created by fear, pride, mistrust, and doubt among brethren are dissolved.

God's perfect kingdom order is imparted among and within the group. Christ Jesus is manifest in the lives of the people. The Spirit of Christ begins to move among the people expressing the love gifts of the Spirit of God to implant the will and purposes of God within the people. Fresh life and clear specific direction can be imparted into the hearts of the people. Connections occur as the Spirit causes a joining together of the people to one another in perfect order.

The kingdom of heaven on earth is established and ordered by the Holy Spirit as each member of the Body is perfectly joined to the one Head, Christ Jesus. Literally the resurrected life of Christ Jesus flows into and abides in the hearts and lives of the people. Direct personal communication with Christ at the throne of God through the Christ within His people becomes the life of God in us doing the will of God on earth as it is in heaven. Pure and holy supernatural reality becomes the norm for our lives, and all things are possible as we simply believe what Christ within us is revealing from the throne room of God. We will do nothing apart from the instruction and empowerment of Christ within us by the Holy Spirit.

Truth is manifest through love.

It is not possible for the truth of Christ in us by the Holy Spirit and the manifest presence of God among us to be received or understood by the natural mind apart from the Holy Spirit. Spiritual things must be spiritually discerned. Even many Christians do not receive and experience the fullness of the reality of the manifest presence of God joining us in love to Christ and one another. Intellectually they may know the facts of this and may believe that they are walking in the fullness of it. The experience of becoming one with Christ and one with one another is clearly taught in the Bible. Yet the reality of experiencing the process of receiving and properly responding to this and other layers of revealed truth may not yet be real for them.

God has restored layers of truth that was lost to the church during the falling away during the dark ages. Over the past 500 years or so, layer after layer of truth has been restored to the church. As each layer is restored there is an experiential learning curve of people adjusting to the newly re-revealed truth. Like children with new toys, they do not fully understand the new toys, and there may be lots of misuses and abuses of the toys by the excited child.

With the restoration of the power and gifts of the Holy Spirit only just over a hundred years ago, there were lots of things that happened as the children of God began a learning season of life in the Holy Spirit.

Strong reactions against the restored truth are not uncommon with each restored layer. This was and is very true with the restoration of the supernatural works of the Holy Spirit.

Well-meaning teachers have maligned the true works of the Holy Spirit by failing to recognize the immaturity of the children of God attempting to move in the reality of the works of the Holy Spirit. A gross and dark picture can be painted by pointedly presenting the faults, mistakes, and childish abuses of the people seeking to move in the work and gifts of the Holy Spirit without presenting the great value and truth of the reality of the supernatural work of the Holy Spirit. The strong teachings against the work of the Holy Spirit and the watered-down teachings presented by some have mentally locked many Christians out of the valuable reality of Christ in us by the Holy Spirit and the mighty works of God in Christ by the Holy Spirit.

This is not necessarily a permanent failure.

The current undercover invasion of the Holy Spirit is bringing change in the hearts of some as they experience the work of Holy Spirit seemingly just appearing in their hearts as their previous mind-set melts in the powerful presence of the love of God.

Many strong blockages that have separated people of God both from the fullness of becoming one with Christ and with one another are being melted as people of God are being transformed in His presence.

Many may be set apart for a season to deal with the sense of death they feel within, caused by separation from the fullness of Christ in the Holy Ghost and separation from parts of the Body. Like a disjoined branch from the vine, a disjoined soul from the manifest life of Christ in the presence of God by the Holy Spirit experiences a death process. That is not necessarily totally a bad thing in the end.

The death of who we were and the strong beliefs that have separated us are a vital part of entering into the greater fullness of the resurrection life of Christ that is only available fully connected into the vine of Christ by the Spirit of God.

All that we experience of Christ Jesus in this life is by the Holy Spirit.

The life of Christ is brought to us and manifest in and around our lives by the Holy Ghost. The experience of hearing and obeying God is by the Holy Spirit. The grace of God flowing the love, power, and wisdom of Christ in us is by the Holy Spirit.

Christ is alive today and doing the same works that He did in His natural incarnate body. The kingdom that He announced in His natural body before the cross is now being formed on earth by Christ in His many membered body.

The existing Babylonian lifestyle is coming down. The Babylonian lifestyle that was planted and has thrived in the darkness of the lack of the manifest presence of God is being destroyed before our eyes. Babylon must be destroyed before New Jerusalem can rule in this world.

The New Jerusalem lifestyle is the life of God with His people. It is coming down from heaven now to earth by the Holy Spirit of God. Literally it is being formed in the hearts and lives of His maturing kingdom people.

As the undercover work of the Holy Spirit continues to bring the manifest presence of God to transform His people individually and in small clusters the New Jerusalem, life of God with His people is becoming reality under the cover of gross darkness in the world. The gross darkness is covering the masses while the light of God is arising upon His people filled and saturated with the life of Christ by the Holy Ghost in the loving presence of God.

Arise, shine; For your light has come! And the glory of the Lord is risen upon you. For behold, the darkness shall cover the earth, And deep darkness the people; But the Lord will arise over you, And His glory will be seen upon you (Isaiah 60:1-1).

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 8 - Hearts Melted by Love Joined for Life

In this season, the sovereign supernatural flow of the pure love of Spirit God is melting our hearts with love and blending the liquefied spiritual substance of our hearts together with one another.

The hard places in us are being crushed by the invasion of His love overcoming our prejudices and breaking down our walls. The once frozen streams of nourishing love relationship that have been blocked by cold segmented religious doctrines, beliefs, and practices are melting in the liquid fire of love. The nourishing flow of pure love is beginning to flow freely among God's kingdom people.

The personal strongholds of the enemy that have frozen the streams of living water flowing from our inner beings are being dissolved in the melting of our souls by the fire of His love flowing from His presence in and among us.

These strongholds were once the strength of our souls. They gave us strength and drive to make our lives work in the darkness of Babylonian living. They seemed to us very needful and necessary for us to survive and prosper in the past.

One stronghold affecting many lives is known as "Political Correctness."

"Political Correctness" has two sisters, "Social Correctness" and "Religious Correctness."

These are humanistic gods that flourish both in secular life and religious life including the Christian religion. In the western world the secular has so invaded the Christian religion that there is little difference.

These three sister gods become a false veil that seek to shut off the flow of Spirit God in and through us. They establish their own standards and rules or laws to replace the reality of love, power, and wisdom of Spirit God. The spirit that rules the three sister false gods is the same power that seeks to replace God in the temple; the spirit of anti-Christ is powerfully at work among us.

We are the temple of God, His dwelling place on earth.

In a recent article called <u>"When Church Tradition and The Holy Spirit Disagree"</u> Charles Carrin wrote of the veil in the temple being torn and the Shekinah Glory rushed out from the holy of holies and filled the rest of the temple at that time. Afterwards at Pentecost the glory invaded the upper room and filled the living temple of God, the dwelling place of Spirit God on earth (1 Cor 3:16) (Acts 2:1-4). The veil of his living temple (body) is torn apart and His glory within us by the Holy Spirit is free to flow out to minister the fire of the love of God to others (John 7:38).

In a gathering this past weekend, the subject was brought up that the veil of His now temple, our bodies, was torn open, and the glory should be rushing out of us to do the works of God. Immediately I heard in my spirit that we (the church) had reveiled ourselves by allowing the enemy through the three sister gods of political, social, and religious correctness to veil our hearts and faces from the glory fire of His love, the rivers of living water from within us.

God flowing through us by the Holy Spirit is not politically correct.

Obediently following God by the leadership of Christ Jesus in the Holy Spirit and speaking His truth is NOT politically correct.

Being filled and saturated (baptized) in the Holy Spirit of God is not religiously correct in many places.

Speaking the truth in relationships is almost never socially correct.

In all of these situations, there is a strong demand on us to do what is correct according to the systems that exist. Truly walking in the Spirit of God will not fit into the political, social, or religions systems of the current world. God cannot be brought under these systems that are foreign to the kingdom of God from heaven on earth.

God's kingdom righteousness means being and doing what God says by His power that is within us by His Spirit. It involves open transparency with one another, not false faces of agreement and politeness to maintain a false peace in a false relationship.

One false act leads to more and only increases the strength of the veil locking us off from real intimacy with God and with one another. Intimacy is lost in a web of political, social, and religious deceit. Trust goes out the window and true agreement is impossible. Oneness with God and with each other is only in the pure holy love of God flowing through open faces toward God and toward one another.

2 Cor 3:18: But we all, with unveiled face, beholding as in a mirror the glory of the Lord, are being transformed into the same image from glory to glory, just as by the Spirit of the Lord.

The veil we have allowed to cover our faces and stop intimate reality must be removed.

In the gathering last week, the group in one accord prayed confessing our need and asking God to help us to remove the veils from us. Prophetically we took hold of an unseen veil and lifted it off of as a groom might lift it from a bride. It was then that we saw that the Lord must lift the veil from His Bride. For me, and I believe for others, it was a real release of the effects of the strongholds that were blocking the release of the glory of Christ from within us. Wow! God is doing such a great work in quickly preparing us for the reality of kingdom living.

The spirit involving religious correctness has robbed much of the people of God from the release of the great blessings and empowerments of the greater fullness of the Holy Ghost of Christ fully living within us.

The kingdom of God reality is now in this season flowing through the Holy Spirit. Think about it: all we have of Christ Jesus and the Father flowing into our lives now comes through the Holy Spirit. That is why the enemy has sought to build strongholds against the fullness of the Holy Spirit in many believers. Most believers in the western world have been misled to some degree by false religious doctrines about the Holy Spirit. These doctrines were derived from man-made teachings without the full guidance of the Holy Spirit to bring forth the truth of the written word.

Many doctrinal differences and debates that cause separation are directly traceable to the spirit of <u>religious correctness that makes it far more important to be "right,"</u> in

accordance with our view of theology, than to intimately relate to God and one another in His love flowing by His Spirit.

We saw that veil coming off and losing its hold on Gods people last weekend. Across this world God is moving to bring His people into intimate oneness with Him and then with one another.

This is NOT a doctrinal or theological issue.

God is not pitting one sect of teaching against another to correct this situation. I am not saying in this writing that this is a better theological teaching for you. Theology by its simplified basic definition is man studying about God. That implies figuring out God with our natural human minds and understanding. Are you kidding me? I am not trying to be cute here; it just seems to me that it is a very frivolous pursuit for me and you to try to figure out God.

God is not trying to change our teachings; He is changing us in our hearts from the deepest part of our spirits, the totality of our souls including our minds, wills, and emotions. He is changing our entire being by releasing His Spirit as a burning passionate fire of love that cannot be taught and cannot be explained but must be experienced.

The "Holy Ghost ship" of His completely consuming love has landed and is spreading from heart to heart as we behold Him in one another with unveiled faces. We are maturing in His love. When we were children we spoke and acted as children. In this day we are putting away childish things such as our humanistic forms of correctness. With our veils removed we are face to face and are coming to know Him as we are known. Before we matured in love, we saw as through a glass dimly, but now face to face we knew in part and now we experience the reality of His presence becoming one with us in His pure holy all-consuming love.

We are a new creation, a new spirit being that has become one with Christ. His Spirit being abides in our spirit being, and our spirit being abides in His Spirit being. Every cell of our natural body is affected by the Spirit of Christ. From the tips of our toes to the ends of our fingers to the tops of our heads the Spirit Christ abides in our spirit. His love has changed our being into His being and every work we accomplish is His doing. We are crucified with Christ and the life we now live is His life living in our bodies where we once lived.

"Christ in us the hope of glory" of Colossians 1:27 is now becoming the reality of the fulfillment of the glory of Christ in us flowing out though unmasked faces to restore the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven.

The failures of the nations of this world are directly traceable to the weakness of the church honoring other gods of political, social, and religious correctness and thereby putting a veil back over the holy of holies – the manifest presence of God in the Holy Spirit pouring the love, power, and wisdom of the life of Christ into His people on earth.

The love of God by the Holy Ghost of Christ Jesus abiding in His people on Planet Earth can change our world and restore the kingdom of God from heaven ruling and reigning on earth as it is in heaven. We are turning, changing our hearts to the Holy Spirit of God bringing us the Spirit and life of Christ Jesus and the Father abiding in us and lifting off the veils of the political, social, and religious false gods.

Chapter 9 - Pure Holy Love and the World

The Holy Ghost is invading the innermost being of kingdom of God seeking men and women with a spiritual presence imparting His pure holy love. This undercover supernatural spiritual invasion is out of sight to those who are still blinded by the darkness that is upon the world.

We were blessed over the past two weekends to have been a part of two different gatherings where there was a corporate expression of the reality of the Holy Ghost invasion of love. In the gathering this past weekend, there was a somewhat mixed group. Some had heard but had not yet experienced the reality of the current Holy Spirit love invasion coming into the hearts of people today.

Some who were at the gathering were seeing the failing of the cultures and subsequently the nations and their governments and were truly seeking answers. Some desired to see and experience the inner work of the invading Holy Spirit that they had been reading about. Answers came from around the room in the form of prophetic words of wisdom and spiritual understanding. There were also a few bumps in the Saturday morning and afternoon portions of the gathering. This is not uncommon when fresh spiritual depth is being poured out among the people.

Jesus served the best wine last.

The evening portion of the gathering was one of the most glorious times of the presence of God that I have experienced in this fresh season of the new day of God. Pure prophetic words of encouragement and strengthening flowed around the room, releasing strong confirmation in perfect accuracy as testified by those receiving.

Near the end of the gathering, the presence of God was so resting upon us and the impartation of the pure holy love so filling us that perfect peace seemed to reign over and around us as well as within us. I heard the voice of God speak clearly in my spirit, "This is what the Holy Ghost invasion looks like, and this is what it feels like." I knew that I was to speak that out loud into the silence of the room.

Some who are reading this may yet be thinking and wondering, *Is this really real? Is it really happening? Is this really the emerging of a new day of the kingdom of God from heaven coming forth on earth?* Let me share with you one way that we can and will know if we are experiencing this everlasting and never-ending move of the Spirit of God imparting pure holy love changing the people from the inside out. Not only will the glory manifest and the tangible spiritual presence of love rest within and around, there will also be another sure sign: there will be testing. The enemy will come quickly to test the reality.

Love is not truly perfected (mature) until it is tested. The magnitude of the test will be in proportion to the impartation of pure holy love received. If there is no testing and tempting to seek to draw us away or cause us to push back against the source of the testing, then there probably was little or no fresh impartation of pure holy love. After an experience of a glorious encounter in a gathering, the tester will probably meet us in the hallway on our way out to test the reality of the impartation. If we pass that first test, then probably by the second morning he will be knocking at our door or ringing our cell phone.

One purpose for the test is to prove the love impartation. By the fresh holy love within, we quickly forgive and both feel and express the love of God for the person or

people sent to deliver the test, then we know the love is real. In addition the love grows both stronger and deeper through the testing.

There is probably not maximum strength in the testing if the substance of the test does not involve either people who we love or the very core of our most treasured spiritual gifts from God. Yes, those near us who we love and have sought to serve and the most beautiful gifts and revelations from God will be the source or substance of the testing. The tests are most effective when the good people in our life bring the offense toward the works of God in us and are betraying us and even seeking to destroy what God is doing in and with us. All the while they may actually believe that they are trying to help us.

The test is completed when we move right through the circumstances without any ill feelings toward the person or people involved in the test – when the peace and joy of the Lord is not disturbed in us at all. The loving presence of God is so much more than any person or spirit can come up with. The slanderous or incriminating words roll right off our backs like water off a ducks back. Honestly, sometimes it may take me overnight to fully get past the issue, but most times it is finished before I lay down to sleep. These are times when a precious brother or sister can be of the most value with an encouraging word.

Pure holy love is the most powerful substance in the world.

Often the lost and poor of the world are drawn by both the pure holy love and the power of God to meet their need. Even most animals of the world will respond to the gentleness of the pure love of God. Even bears, lions, and tigers have been known to respond to the presence of the love and gentleness of God and have literally become tame and affectionate.

It is through love that power and wisdom flow into the hearts of the "poor in spirit." Those who are of a prideful haughty spirit cannot perceive the pure holy love of God and will usually interpret it as something else. Often leaders with a religious pharisaical spirit may fear the person filled with the pure holy love of God. They may see them as a threat to their position or to their religious doctrines and rules. Pure holy love can even be perceived by them as rebellion against them and an attempt to take over their place of authority because the people are drawn to the love and may tend to gather around the person carrying love.

God's pure holy love is not like the human type of love that is a socially and religiously correct desiring of one another to fill our own needs or programs. The game is to be kind and giving enough to get the relationship, money, or affection needed to satisfy my need and my wants. It is a giving to get type of pseudo love. Religious and business people understand this type of human false love. However, they may not understand pure holy love that requires nothing in response but remains alive and passionate even in the midst of persecution or serious injustices. This is the love of God that is being imparted by the Holy Spirit.

Freely you have received, freely give.

The Holy Spirit filling of pure love cannot be bought. However, we must willingly come into a position of seeking the kingdom of God and His righteousness. Our hearts must be open and available to receive the work of Christ Jesus by the Holy Spirit. I was recently asked what would enable a person to be available to receive the fullness of the work of the Holy Spirit. In practical experience it seems to me that

most often it requires coming into a place of brokenness – a place of having the veils of religion and self-sufficiency of our hearts torn usually by traumatic experiences.

To a degree the love is contagious. Associating closely with people who are infected by the Holy Spirit love tends to spread it like a virus. However, it is always a sovereign work of the Holy Spirit.

The love of God flows freely from us as it flowed freely into us. Mostly we just get out of the way and let God love those who have made themselves to be as our enemies. There is no fear in love. Perfect (mature) love casts out all fear.

No one person or group has exclusivity on the pure holy love from God. There is no elite class of people. There is no special spot on earth that one must go to receive it. This love cannot be taught or produced by a formula. This is not new; it has been around since Pentecost. However, there is a fresh spiritual flood of ministering spirits (holy angels) releasing the fire of God in this season. The fire of God seems very near and ready to move in and among God's people very smoothly and quickly.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 10 - A New Day

The glory of God is arising within a people called and destined to humbly be lifted from within and from above by a pure holy love that empowers with the very life of God in Christ by the Holy Spirit – love so powerful that it crushes and dissolves all that is not of God in our hearts and lives – love so captivating that the things of this world fade into a distant reality in the intensity and weight of His love.

There is nothing that we would not do for this God of love – nothing that we would

hold back from Him - all that we have all that we are and all we ever shall have is

only His alone to do with according to His good pleasure.

There is not a human being strong enough to take this love from us – no one can be mean enough to us to cause the love to become hatred and bitterness. This love is a powerful reality of strength from heaven to move with peaceful authority to add and remove, to bring forth that which God desires and remove that which God desires to be removed.

The governance of creation abides in this endless love and power from heaven now abiding in our hearts as we find only His life and abide eternally and completely IN HIM, in Christ.

This new day of no longer striving to gain and accomplish holiness in our lives but walking completely in His LIFE and His LIFE in us, all is perfected, fully matured in love and empowered to change the world around us and to see the kingdom of heaven manifest on earth in an army of mature sons of God projecting the kingdom of heaven into the earth.

This is the most significant change from heaven on earth since Pentecost. It is the time of Tabernacles as God is now dwelling with man individually one on one with us and in our small separate gatherings and in occasional large unified gatherings with other just ones made perfect in God along with the corporate manifest presence of God in Christ by the Holy Spirit and multitudes of holy ministering spirits, holy angels and ministers as a flame of fire.

Hebrews 12:22-24:

But you have come to Mount Zion and to the city of the living God, the heavenly Jerusalem,

To an innumerable company of angels,

To the general assembly and church of the firstborn who are registered in heaven,

To God the Judge of all, to the spirits of just men made perfect,

To Jesus the Mediator of the new covenant, and to the blood of sprinkling

Over the past few weeks we have personally been part of two weekend gathering that I believe bore all the qualities of the gathering described in Hebrews 12 above.

Here are some excerpts from one response to a special gathering a few weekends ago where His love was poured out within and among us.

Dear Ron and Barbara

Just wanted to let you know what a precious time we had with you all and with the Lord.

The worship was pure and beautifully touched the Lord's heart....and mine very deeply.

And as for you all, Ron, you are the spiritual father we have been longing forsomeone real who loves as our heavenly Father loves us. Many of us did not have an earthly father like thatmy dad only wrote to me twice in all of my 62 years....you write to us every few weeks speaking the Father's heartloving usencouraging us and correcting us gently.

All of these spiritual children....birthed in the Father's heartare being raised by His Spirit....and you are a catalyst some of us needed to have hearts united by the Father's heart and His Love....to keep going.

Since our awakening to the truth of His love and experiencing this in our own hearts ...we have seen our children change and grow in His love too.

Barbara, your love overflows and as I watched you create those beautiful dishrags I am reminded of D's word; as you knit in the natural those creations have a purpose; just as Father is knitting our hearts together in His Most Holy Love for His purpose. Just wanted you to know how much you are loved. Can't wait to be with you again.!!!!!!

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 11 - Unrelenting Love

The pure holy love invading our hearts and lives is a love that cannot be stopped – an extreme love that will never die and will carry the power and authority of God to the end of the matter where it is sent. Nothing is too hard for God, and He will not be deterred by the forces of man or nature. He is Love eternal and unlimited. His love released is unrelenting; like a flaming arrow it will not stop until it hits its mark, finds the place for which it was sent. The passion of God is the force that sends the fiery arrow on its unrelenting course to accomplish the perfect will of God.

We know something of the power of human passion as the most intense drive within natural man. A strong passion will drive a man to the ends of the earth seeking its fulfillment and will not be denied. Tolerance does not often travel with passion. Consuming love is a fire that is not containable or stoppable. It will not relent and is not tolerant of evil injustice. God's merciful love is fully balanced by His passionate love.

The Time of Birth

The passionate love of God manifesting now in the hearts of God's people by the Holy Spirit is birthing the full grown body of Christ. There is a time of birth without tolerance. At the precise moment, in the thousands of years of God's dealing with man, when it is time birth comes. Anyone who would stand against the birth of the fruit of God's passion will meet the passion of God's flaming sword in the hands of His powerful angels.

Mat 10:34: "Do not think that I came to bring peace on earth. I did not come to bring peace but a sword."

Heb 1:7: And of the angels He says: "Who makes His angels spirits And His ministers a flame of fire."

It is the love of God that heals and melts together the hearts of His people who willingly receive the life and works of Christ Jesus by the Holy Spirit. It is also the love of God that protects His children and will in His pure love and mercy leave no stone unturned to save and change the offender – yet eventually God will dissolve all that stands against Him and His children with the fire of His passion.

God's love gathers into unity, and God's love divides asunder. The sheep are divided from the goats, the tares are separated from the wheat, and the wheat is separated from the chaff. It is God who divides the sheep and goats, and His holy angels who remove the tares. It is men working with the wind (Spirit) who separate the wheat from the chaff. All of these things happen at a time called HARVEST, the end of an age.

There was a time that the sheep and goats grazed together under the watchful care of the shepherd. There was a time when the tares grew undisturbed beside the wheat. And there was a time when the chaff was a protective shell for the wheat kernels.

This time existed for two millennia until NOW as God has been preparing a people. The work of the cross of Christ Jesus and the resurrected life of Christ in the

world by the Holy Ghost has been for two thousand years patiently progressively restoring a remnant of men and women toward becoming a full grown body of mature sons. Grown sons of God are led by Christ Himself as the first born among the many brethren of His Body who is now releasing His nature of pure holy love to establish His kingdom on earth as it is in heaven. The invasion of the pure love by the Holy Ghost bringing the pure holy love of God is birthing and empowering a glorified body in which the Spirit of Christ fully dwells.

Unseen by most of the religious and natural minded people of the world

All of this is hidden from the people of the fallen world systems that will not turn to Christ Jesus as savior and Lord and seek the kingdom of God with their whole hearts. The wickedness and darkness grown from the seeds sown by the anti-Christ spirit has grown into a cover of darkness upon the earth. Hidden beneath the cover of darkness, the invasion of the Holy Ghost is firmly establishing the bright and glorious dominion of love in the hearts of rapidly maturing sons of God. The beautiful New Jerusalem of God is coming down from heaven into the hearts and lives of the sons of the kingdom.

Right now today even as I write this there is an opening in the hearts of multitudes of people prepared by the Spirit of God to give their lives to God as soon as they hear the truth spoken in love by God's sent ones. Instantly they are being born again and immediately baptized in the Holy Spirit. This is the true work of great grace. There is indeed a super work of great grace being supernaturally poured out empowering the harvest of the world.

The anti-Christ most always invents a counterfeit to try to prevent those who can be affected by the darkness from seeing and receiving the fresh work of God. Well-meaning religious people see the false counterfeit and are deterred from receiving the true when it comes forth, believing that it is the false. Their religious minds are darkened, and some may receive strong delusions that drive them to fight against God and His work of great grace flowing through pure holy love in the Holy Spirit of Christ.

The Great Divide

At the same time that God is sovereignly, by the invasion of His consuming love, bringing together men and women in perfect oneness with God and with one another, there is a major separation taking place as well. **The same pure love that unifies also divides.** In the pure love of God there is power and authority. It is not an authority of men or over men; it is supernatural authority of Christ inherent in the love of God by the Holy Spirit. The authority of love is feared and despised by all other authority that is not rooted in the love of God. This and other things cause people to rise up against the current move of God and those who are receiving it.

God will not fully develop and release His full blessings and glory in the presence of those who are yet affected by the darkness. Delusion will cause some religious people to violently oppose the people of the true love of God. The people receiving strong delusions will attack with sometimes veiled words of very cunning accusation that they will spread to all who will listen. God spoke to me a long time ago that all who could be deceived would be deceived. Since then we have seen many notable leaders and prominent men being led astray by the cunning words and strategies of the enemy.

The time of tolerance of the wheat and tares growing together is passing now. The goats will be gathered separately from the sheep by the Judge according to those who have the real love in them.

On the threshing floor the wheat is cleansed and will not be mixed back with the chaff that is blown away by the wind of the Spirit. It is urgent to hear and obey the Spirit in every step that we take. We must have God's guidance by the Holy Spirit to know when to comfort and seek to secure a troubled person and when to let them go. We are not the decision maker. Our part is to allow and to assist to facilitate the will of God in the situation, whether it is reconnection or separation which ever God is doing. Even if there is a sense of temporary pain involved, we must in every case follow Christ in the Holy Spirit in this age of the kingdom of God being formed within His undercover people.

2 Cor 6:16-18: And what agreement has the temple of God with idols? For you are the temple of the living God. As God has said: "I will dwell in them And walk among them. I will be their God, And they shall be My people." 17 Therefore "Come out from among them

And be separate, says the Lord. Do not touch what is unclean, And I will receive you."

18 "I will be a Father to you, And you shall be My sons and daughters, Says the Lord Almighty."

Not every case is one of wheat and tares. In the new kingdom of God order, some brothers and sisters who were connected in a place must be moved and placed in another place. We may have been part of a religious body where we could fit in a certain way. However, now that the true spiritual body of Christ is being formed by spiritual order and love, we may truly find that we were designed to fit in another part of the body. We may have been attached as a toe on the foot in the religious system body but now are to become and ear or an eye or whatever in the spiritual body.

Natural human thinking and feelings can grossly mislead us in this new season of kingdom love invasion and change. Natural human love, passion, and compassion are not going to lead us to our destination. Most assuredly depending on natural human resources will lead us into being one who can be deceived – one who can fall into the strong delusion of the enemy. When we do as King Saul did and allow ourselves to be led by something other than God, He may step back and allow the strong delusions to take over and take us away from the reality of what He is doing (I Sam 16:14). While at the time we are thinking we are doing and saying the right thing, we are speaking madness and walking in strong delusions (2 Thes 2:11).

God's pure holy love in His presence by the Holy Spirit WILL NEVER MISLEAD US; OUR NATURAL HUMAN COMPASSION WILL MOST ALWAYS MISS THE MARK AND TAKE US ASTRAY. This is why mature sons of God had to be coming forth before the reality of the kingdom and the ruling city of New Jerusalem could begin to be formed on earth. The love of God will lead us to do things that our natural human compassion would never agree with. One can readily see how that the natural world can from their perspective view the people walking in the kingdom of God to be worthy of death. Selah. Unfortunately, many religious "Christians" who have been affected by the darkness of the fallen world will completely agree with the natural world against the true sons of the kingdom coming forth.

Only the pure holy love in the presence of God can lead us and strengthen us to move through the significant changes taking place in our world as the great transformation from the past age into the age of the kingdom. The move from the spiritual fulfillment of the symbolic feast of Pentecost to the spiritual fulfillment of the symbolic feast of Tabernacles is a great and very significant change that we are now enduring.

It is time for all who hear the upward call of God to be strong and courageous in the Spirit in assisting all who are willing to abandon the past and lift up their eyes to the mountain of the Lord. It is God's good pleasure to give us His kingdom. In a time far past, I heard the Lord say to me, "Love my people, and I will give you my kingdom." Access and function in the real kingdom of God begins and ends with the pure holy love of God in Christ Jesus by the Holy Spirit abiding in us as we abide in Him.

Keep on pursuing love. It never fails and His kingdom never ends.

Chapter 12 - From the Foundation Up

Most thinking people in the world can see from their personal perspective in their small part of the massive worldwide picture that something is very much out of order in this world.

People with a spiritual kingdom of God mindset clearly see that not only all of mankind but all life on the planet and the planet itself are experiencing a rapidly deteriorating condition and are in need of a major restructuring to renew and sustain quality life on the planet for time to come.

The ultimate foundation for planet earth and all that is on it has been perfectly laid. Christ Jesus is the true foundation upon which all life in this world is to rest. Jesus came from heaven and became a man in a damaged world among imperfect people. He was birthed from a virgin without an earthly father. He was born of the seed of the Holy Spirit of God.

His perfect sinless life and death upon the cross finished the work of the spiritual foundation for the kingdom of God on earth. The foundation for the redeeming and restoring of the natural world is laid in Christ Jesus. His return in the Holy Spirit to indwell His people became the power to begin to build the kingdom of God structure upon the foundation that is laid.

The structure of the world and the people in which Jesus was first birthed into the earth was imperfect and unsuitable to become the building upon the foundation that was laid. The first century disciples began building the perfect structure of the kingdom of God upon the foundation of Christ Jesus by the work of the Spirit of Christ in them by the Holy Spirit.

Someone else had another plan.

Men wanted to make significant alterations to the building being built upon the foundation. Their plan did not fit the foundation as it was and another layer of foundational material was laid over the foundation of Christ Jesus. Man made a covering foundation of religion upon which to build their plan, their kingdom and not the kingdom of God. They called the structure of their religious kingdom "church" and could truthfully say it was on the foundation of Jesus. And indeed a bit of the original foundation seeped through the cover of religion so that what was built was a mixture of God's words and principles with the false and empty godless ways of fallen man's twisted thinking.

The religious church system turned away the reality of the supernatural love, power, and wisdom of Christ flowing only in the real presence of the living God within and among His people by the Holy Ghost of Christ living His life in His people building His kingdom. The kingdom reality in the Holy Spirit was rejected by the religious systems in favor of rituals, programs, and a powerless form of godliness without the reality of God imparting His pure holy love and the power and wisdom from heaven that comes with His love.

A NEW BIRTH IS NOW CHANGING EVERYTHING

From and among the imperfect church system a SON is being birthed from the womb of a virgin generation and again without an earthly father. The HOLY SPIRIT has

again penetrated (invaded) a people – a people who have died to their life from Adam and have been made alive as a pure virgin Bride now become the wife and mother giving birth to a Man Child. The past religious church system is not the father of the SON. God by His Holy Spirit is the Father.

As they did with Jesus in His first incarnation, people assume that the Son who is being birthed is really the child of a natural father and not the Son of God. They will attempt to crucify the Son again and sincerely believe they are trying to do God a service. Christ will not be crucified again. The Son of God in His temple of multitudes of sons will stand while the old structure and the false foundation are dissolved from the earth. There will not be one stone left upon another of that which man has built, and set up to be his god made with his own hands. The world will experience the fire of the cleansing judgment of Almighty God. Nothing will remain that is against the true plan of God for His kingdom built upon the fully uncovered foundation of Christ.

The new structure of the kingdom of God will bring forth the order of God upon earth and the kingdoms of this world are become the kingdoms of our God. The world and the planet could not become "on earth as it is in heaven" from within the structure of the passing church systems. Only in the original kingdom structure built upon the cleared foundation of Christ can there be the reality of the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven.

For those with ears to hear this, this is the season of transformation that you and I were sent to this earth to be a part of bringing forth. Trivial matters of misunderstandings and persecutions are truly a small thing in the light of His glory coming forth in us.

Personally, I once thought that the phrase to take up your cross meant to keep on dying and repenting and perhaps some of that is involved. Others may have known this a long time ago but for me only recently has it been revealed that taking up the cross daily is a most glorious thing in which we daily receive the rejection and persecution of Christ in us from the religious people of the world and the anti-Christ spirit daily trying to stop the glorious kingdom of God coming forth in and through His people. Along with persecution comes the absolute all-consuming fire of God's love so exploding within us that there is no fleshly or natural response possible from us. There is only a real and pure love and desire for all to come into the reality of His kingdom of love.

A New Structure

Everything is being rebuilt from the foundation up by the master builder Christ Jesus in the manifesting sons of God by the invasion and nurturing of the grace empowerment of God. Behold I make all things new. A new heaven and a new earth are being formed in and around us. Even as we write this, God is pouring out His love to those who are losing their lives to gain real life now in Christ and Christ in us. This seems at times that it is almost more that our natural bodies can stand.

There is no end to praise for His great Holy Ghost invasion gliding into our hearts and so filling us with intense love for God and for one another. There are not words sufficient to proclaim the glory of His love. The pain of suffering has become the glory of His love. Thank You Jesus. Thank You Father. Thank you Holy Spirit. And thank you to all who have been and are a part of shaping one another into a posture

ready to receive the kingdom of His love and glory, both those who have despised and misunderstood us and those who have given of the love from within their hearts. All have been a vital part of preparing a people to receive His kingdom and arise from on our faces in His presence to stand in the pure glory of the beauty of His holiness.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 13 - Peace and Joy in Tabernacles

A few days prior to my visit to a piece of land at the east coast of North Carolina a dark tragedy had occurred that created a strong offense of darkness upon the land affecting the godly people of the land. The men gathered and walked the perimeters of the land anointing with oil and praying driving off all darkness. The couple who owned the property went to the spot where the evil act had occurred and worshiped the Lord while cleansing all the natural residue as well as the spiritual atmosphere.

A few days later I along with several others visited the same area. I experienced something that I have experienced only once before in the natural and twice before in spiritual dreams. For lack of words I will describe it as being completely surrounded in perfect peace. The day seemed perfect walking among the scattered trees without any obstruction or obstacles, a gentle breeze blew across the water, the skies were clear, and it was neither hot nor cold. Perfect peace from heaven seemed to settle upon this place. There was not the least hint of fear or strife or any threat seemingly in the entire world. Praying gently in the Spirit, it was as if I was surely walking in a piece of heaven come to earth.

This was only a small portion of a larger piece of costal land; much of the rest of the land was a potential Garden of Eden: a place of production and life that had been in the past a dream that had failed and was now awaiting full restoration from the failure of natural human works of the previous owners.



For me this is such a clear picture of the condition of the world now and the need for the new owners of this world to bring the return to the perfect ways of God as in the Garden of Eden. God is taking us back, and the land is being reclaimed to be restored to the perfect peace of God on earth as it is in heaven. Jesus came with the announcement of the angels of peace on earth and goodwill toward man. God is in the process of restoring His kingdom; His original design of righteousness, peace, and joy on earth by His Spirit.

Joy is Peace in Action

I cannot remember where I heard it said that joy is peace in action and peace is joy at rest. Today God is speaking in my spirit to return to walking in the fullness of joy.

Believe it or not, this is something that we can do now in this time of the fulfilling of the work of Christ Jesus. We can decide in our hearts to enter walking in the full provision of perfect love that is invading our spirits by the Holy Ghost reality of Christ Jesus.

God is restoring the Garden of Eden experience of innocence, purity, and holiness of Christ abiding within our beings. His all-consuming LOVE seeks to dissolve all within us that is rooted in our past lives of worldly mixtures, creating His perfect peace and

full joy in our hearts regardless of our natural circumstances. The peace of God and joy in our hearts is not dependent upon the situations and circumstances of our natural lives. Actually the circumstances or our natural lives are greatly affected by the peace and joy in our hearts.

Come up Higher

There are now two realms of existence – two realities of life in which we can choose to live. One drains our life and makes us tired and sick. The other is life giving and makes us joyful and filled with peace.

Probably most Christians have been trained, as have I, that we could not live on the "mountain top" spiritual experience all the time. It was believed that we must come back down to naturally focus upon natural things and manage life from our natural understanding with God's help and only occasionally entirely shift our focus temporarily to the spiritual realm of existence. It was generally believed that only after death in heaven would we be able to live in the presence of God continually.

Three Major Shifts of Change

There were three major Old Testament feasts that were kept faithfully by the Jewish people and are still observed in this day. The feasts of Passover, Pentecost, and Tabernacles were prophetic pictures or foreshadows of the season to come in the time of the Messiah and afterwards. Christ Jesus and His work within the people of God are the fulfillment of these great patterns of spiritual reality proclaimed in the many aspects of these three great feasts. This is not meant to be a teaching on this vast subject but only to refer to some of the major points clearly visible in history.

The feast of **Passover** was fulfilled in natural life in the shedding of the blood of the Lamb of God, Christ Jesus, for the sin of the world. At the crucifixion, resurrection, and ascension of Christ, the major shift of Passover was released into the world. The second major feast fulfillment began fifty days later at **Pentecost** when the Holy Spirit came to abide in the people of God, empowering the people with the life of Christ within.

After this first century time of Christ Jesus and His disciples bringing forth the fullness of the gospel of the kingdom to this world, there came a great falling away when religion of mostly human design replaced the reality of life in the Holy Spirit. The dark ages came forth within a few centuries after the last apostle of the Lamb passed away. True believers were greatly persecuted and scattered. A perverse manmade religion developed. The Holy Spirit pulled away from the perverse religious systems that developed by the rule of man with demonic assistance. However, there was probably always hidden somewhere a remnant of true people of God even during the darkest of the dark ages.

It was only around five centuries ago that God began to restore the reality of the true works of Christ Jesus on a broader scale. First was restored the works foreshadowed in the feast of **Passover**. The gospel of forgiveness of sin through faith in Christ and His once and forever sacrifice at the Cross became real again as it was in the first century. It was around the 1500s that it began to be revealed and restored to the people. Salvation by faith was restored widely to the people. After around 400 years of costly and difficult restoration a major portion of the people of God were walking in this restored grace reality.

Only a little over 100 years ago the works that were pictured in the feast of **Pentecost** that had been birthed shortly after the life of Christ on earth, began to be restored again to the people of God. In the early 1900s the baptism and the outpouring of the Holy Spirit along with the power gifts began to be restored to the people of God. By the decades of the 1990s and the early 2000s the works of the time of Pentecost were fully restored unto a major portion of the people of God around the world.

The full spectrum of the ascension gifts of apostle, prophet, evangelist, shepherd, and teacher began to be restored, especially the prophet and the apostle gifts began again to grace the world with the functions required for major shifting and transformation in the Body of Christ. A new dimension of praise, worship, and prayer in the Spirit along with revelation-filled Bible teaching and inspirational Spiritempowered preaching encouraged and spiritually strengthened a major portion of the people of God.

Manifest Presence of God

During this season of Pentecostal restoration, the manifest presence of God was often present in gatherings. In our church meetings and especially in revival type gatherings of extreme corporate worship, prayer, and inspirational preaching of the Bible, we often shifted our entire focus upon God and things above and experienced awesome encounters with the presence of God. There were often miraculous healings and spiritual encounters in the tangible presence of God with us. The works of ministering spirits (holy angels) were apparent in many such gatherings.

This was and is the wonderful godly experience of the season of restored Pentecost. This season had been pictured or foreshadowed in the Jewish Feast of Pentecost and began to manifest into the natural shortly after the ascension of Christ Jesus at the coming of the Holy Spirit on the day of Pentecost when supernaturally the Spirit of God settled upon God's waiting people. The Holy Spirit empowered them with the Spirit of Christ abiding within them doing the supernatural works of Christ, the same great works as He had done before His crucifixion and ascension. And now in the past 20th century the reality of Pentecost was again restored to the people of God.

The Feast of Tabernacles

There was a third great Old Testament feast that pictured or foreshadowed a season of God within and among His people. This great feast was known as Tabernacles, a season of being with God continuously. A season of leaving the elaborate natural life and its many demands and human focused glory and entering into a season of individual and family life with God on a daily basis. A season of less focus on the luxuries of natural life and a great increase on focusing on the Spirit reality of life in and with God on earth as it is in heaven - a season when God would tabernacle with His people, and they would be His people and He would be their only God.

Apparently the fulfillment of the feast of Tabernacles was never in the past widely fulfilled as were the feasts of Passover and Pentecost. Only in this now season has the restoration of the things of God on earth including apostles and prophets and all the gifts of the Holy Spirit been available and widely exercised on earth. The real gospel of the kingdom as Jesus proclaimed and demonstrated it, that has been dormant for most of two thousand years, is now again being widely proclaimed in this day.

The season of Tabernacles is now beginning to manifest in and among God's people. No longer need there be the coming in and going out of His manifest presence. There is within individuals and in family dwellings and in areas of our life the potential to walk and live moment by moment in the presence of God with us in a tangible sense - such oneness with Spirit God that there is never any separation and distance between God with us as the foundation and reason for our lives. This is the "come up higher" life dwelling with God in higher places.

For thus says the High and Lofty One, Who inhabits eternity, whose name is Holy, "I dwell in the high and holy place, with him who has a contrite and humble spirit, to revive the spirit of the humble, and to revive the heart of the contrite ones." (Isa: 57:15)

There is now beginning a major shift among many of God's people. Earthly value systems are being changed to spiritual heavenly value systems. As God's people continuously focus on things above and not on things on earth, many difficulties of life such as stress, over busy, running to and fro, trying to do and become things that are of little significance to real life in God. The hype and mixture of our lives will be dissolved in the pure holy fire of God's love, and His presence in us will consume our past Babylonian style ways. The New Jerusalem lifestyle of "God with His people" will become the guiding city of life in this world.

Many extreme difficulties during the coming time of cleansing judgments will only serve to bring us back to the simple but powerful life as the Garden of Eden was before the fall of Adam. Full restoration is involved in Tabernacles. Our God is faithful and has not left us orphans but Sons of the living Father God. "On earth as it is in heaven" is becoming reality.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit - Gal 5:25.

Chapter 14 - The Mother of Us All - New Jerusalem

Sunday Morning May 11, 2014, around 3:30, I was awakened hearing a word from God. Fresh revelation of familiar scripture from which much had already been revealed in the past was downloading into my spirit. The past understandings begin to morph together into the light of deeper spiritual insight that is much more applicable to our lives and our journey of today. My body shook as my spirit leapt with fresh new spiritual life being poured into my spirit as my soul awakened to receive the fresh light of life coming into my spirit.

I was amazed as I saw in a glance all the intricate myriad of details of a living human being that are miraculously and meticulously formed in the womb of a mother. Every little nerve, blood vessel, internal organs, bones, muscles and on and on had to be perfectly formed according to the data contained in the DNA of the father and the mother.

A living functioning brain stored with some pre-coded data but ready to quickly grow and store untold amounts of data and connections in an organ of intelligent activity far beyond the greatest computers ever devised by man. The new miraculously formed human being is a spirit being ruling over the powerful "computer system," designed by God modeled after God Himself and installed in a living human body. An earthly body with perfectly functioning systems that support life and are able to renew themselves continuously. In addition to all of that, self-awareness and Godawareness with feelings or emotions that are sensitive and vital to experiencing both natural and spiritual life were also created in the new person.

The Miraculous Womb of a Mother

Receiving living spiritual understanding of the role and importance of the miraculous work of a natural mother and natural womb in creating human beings, living souls into this world. The whole world including every nation and every tribe or kingdom that exist is totally dependent upon the wombs of its mothers to continue to exist. If the wombs in a nation were stopped, in one generation a nation would cease to exist. If the wombs of the mothers of a nation were stolen by another nation and the seed of that people were planted in those wombs, a new generation of entirely different human beings would replace that nation.

The establishment of a nation or a kingdom begins in the seeds planted in the wombs of the mothers in which a new living spirit/natural being is formed and birthed into the world to grow quickly in the first few years in the close intimate nurturing of the mother. An entire army or an entire nation can be formed in one generation from a unified consistent seed sowed into the wombs and first years of nurturing of the mothers of a land.

The first few years of life are the most formative time in determining the life of every human being. A line in an 1865 poem by William Ross Wallace has been quoted by a number of wise men. It says, "The hand that rocks the cradle rules the world." The life reality of existence passed on to the young child first by the mother and later by the father in the home begins the formation of the person and the future life that will

be lived. Beyond that natural formative training, schooling or education, and life experience provide the final training of the life that the person will finally become.

A nation, tribe, or kingdom exists by what is trained into its people from conception to maturity.

A desperate work of the anti-Christ spirit is to take captive the mothers of the nations. Most of us can probably clearly see why the spirit of anti-Christ seeking to remove Christ Jesus from the nations of the world and prevent the kingdom of God from coming forth, desperately seeks to bring women under strict control. Every effort is made to capture the wombs of the nations and plant the anti-Christ seed within them, even to the point of stealing godly women and girls. We can see why the home established around a mother and father raising and educating their children in the ways of God must be destroyed for the anti-Christ agenda to accomplish its goal.

Anything that will demoralize and destroy the quality of home life and belief in God is a strong priority for the anti-Christ movements of the world. The educational and media systems must get the children out of the natural nurturing environment of godly families as early as possible and begin to retrain the next generation in immoral and ungodly life. Every potentially godly baby destroyed by abortion is one less to be dealt with later as a foreign anti-Christ people seek to rule over the land and try to stop the coming forth of the kingdom of God by producing children unto themselves.

AS IT IS IN THE NATURAL, SO IT IS IN THE SPIRITUAL

Kingdom-minded people understand that the natural is often a clear picture into spiritual reality. The spiritual form from heaven is replicated in the natural.

THIS IS THE PART THAT AWAKENED FRESH LIFE UNDERSTANDING WITHIN MY SPIRIT AND SOUL.

Gal 4:26: but the Jerusalem above is free, which is the mother of us all.

There is a Spirit womb of God in heaven.

That Spirit womb of God from heaven is now come down to earth to form the people of God into the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven.

A new breed of people are being created on earth. A people who are not truly new at all but are mankind as God originally created. A new/old creation is conceived within the spiritual mother womb coming down from heaven. The pure holy Sons of God are being miraculously and supernaturally formed in the mother womb of New Jerusalem come down to earth from heaven. These are the new mature Sons who are being birthed forth into the world to manifest the reality of the life of the kingdom of heaven on earth.

Also as it is in the natural, so it is in the spiritual that the children formed in the mother womb and birthed forth into the world will mature and become themselves the mother wombs of a new generation with one Father.

If you are a part of the New Jerusalem mother, you are now in the womb of God in the Holy Spirit coming down from heaven forming us into a new creation as Sons of God, joint heirs with Christ Jesus. Even now the life-forming womb of God is coming down from heaven within and around us to form the new creation of New Jerusalem on earth from heaven. This helps us to understand the great changes of perfect love sovereignly taking place within and among us. The unreasonable and glorious love that has invaded our being is transforming who we are. We are being formed fully to the DNA of the Father in Christ Jesus by the Holy Spirit in the New Jerusalem of God.

As we are fully formed in the womb of New Jerusalem, we are birthed out into the world as mature holy pure sons of God to plant the seeds of the kingdom, the seed of Christ Jesus into the world. The earth and all who are willing will come into the New Jerusalem womb of God and become the recipients of the seed of the King Christ Jesus and the seeds of his kingdom.

The New Jerusalem

Gal 4:26: but the Jerusalem above is free, which is the mother of us all.

Rev 21:2-13: 2 Then I, John, saw the holy city, New Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband. 3 And I heard a loud voice from heaven saying, "Behold, the <u>tabernacle</u> of God is with men, and He will dwell with them, and they shall be His people. God Himself will be with them and be their God. 4 And God will wipe away every tear from their eyes; there shall be no more death, nor sorrow, nor crying. There shall be no more pain, for the former things have passed away." 5 Then He who sat on the throne said, "Behold, I make all things new." And He said to me, "Write, for these words are true and faithful."

6 And He said to me, "It is done! I am the Alpha and the Omega, the Beginning and the End. I will give of the fountain of the water of life freely to him who thirsts. 7 He who overcomes shall inherit all things, and I will be his God and he shall be My son. 8 But the cowardly, unbelieving, abominable, murderers, sexually immoral, sorcerers, idolaters, and all liars shall have their part in the lake which burns with fire and brimstone, which is the second death."

9 Then one of the seven angels who had the seven bowls filled with the seven last plagues came to me and talked with me, saying, "Come, I will show you the bride, the Lamb's wife." 10 And he carried me away in the Spirit to a great and high mountain, and showed me the great city, the holy Jerusalem, descending out of heaven from God, 11 having the glory of God. Her light was like a most precious stone, like a jasper stone, clear as crystal. 12 Also she had a great and high wall with twelve gates, and twelve angels at the gates, and names written on them, which are the names of the twelve tribes of the children of Israel: 13 three gates on the east, three gates on the north, three gates on the south, and three gates on the west.

Spiritual Gathering of the Heavenly Jerusalem, Mother from Heaven

But you have come to Mount Zion and to the city of the living God, the heavenly Jerusalem, to an innumerable company of angels, 23 to the general assembly and church of the firstborn who are registered in heaven, to God the Judge of all, to the spirits of just men made perfect, 24 to Jesus

the Mediator of the new covenant, and to the blood of sprinkling that speaks better things than that of Abel (Heb 12:22).

Notice that this gathering of the heavenly Jerusalem is spiritual and from heaven and has come down to earth. This is the assembly and "church" of those born new creations in Jesus, the "ekklesia" called out ones spiritually gathered with angels, God as judge of all, spirits of just men made perfect (fully mature), and Jesus Himself the mediator of the new covenant of the purifying blood.

This is the true church that Jesus is building that is the light of the world, the hope of the world, the mature Sons for which the whole earth groans awaiting its deliverance into the marvelous light of the kingdom of God. A city of corporate life from heaven on earth God dwelling with His people and the fulfillment of the feast of Tabernacles. The life of the Garden of Eden restored in the redemption of the world.

Mat 5:14: "You are the light of the world. **A city** that is set on a hill cannot be hidden.

Psalm 110:1-4: The Lord said to my Lord,
"Sit at My right hand,
Till I make Your enemies Your footstool."

2 The Lord shall send the rod of Your strength out of Zion.
Rule in the midst of Your enemies!

3 Your people shall be volunteers
In the day of Your power;
In the beauties of holiness, from the womb of the morning,
You have the dew of Your youth.
4 The Lord has sworn
And will not relent,
"You are a priest forever
According to the order of Melchizedek."

Father God said to our Lord Jesus, "Sit at my right hand till I make Your enemies Your footstool." How is this to be done? Is it not by the coming down of the womb of Jerusalem from above creating renewed spirit beings of mature Sons of God in Christ Jesus to carry the rod (strength) of Jesus out of New Jerusalem (Zion) now in the midst of the enemies of God?

Yes, today we are becoming willing volunteers to carry His power in the beauties of holiness from the womb of the early portion (morning) of this third day (millennium) of Christ and seventh day (millennium) since Adam and the Garden of Eden. The heavenly moisture of the youthful fresh life of God is upon us in this morning time of this new "day".

Christ, in the mature Sons of God, is the sworn forever Priest of God after the order of Melchizedek (without human origin or man-made authority). The Priestly Kingship carried in the mature Sons of God being formed in the womb of New Jerusalem is without any human origin or man-made religious authority. It is a return to the original state of man in Adam before the fall — a return to the Garden of Eden, God with us, reality of life on earth as it is in heaven.

The rod of the strength of Christ Jesus in mature Sons will come forth to rule in the midst of His enemies. However, it will not always be that way as the wrath of God puts a final end to the enemies of Christ. As the mature Sons are formed and come forth to occupy the land, the holy angels of God are released to subdue every work of the enemy that lifts itself against Christ Jesus. The cleansing judgment will cleanse the earth of all who will not turn to God and be cleansed by the blood of the Lamb. The full wrath and vengeance of God for every suffering saint of God, every abused or murdered child, every martyred missionary and minister of God will be released to correct forever the great imbalance of atrocities against the people of God.

This is described in the rest of Psalm 110

Psalm 110:5-7: The Lord is at Your right hand; He shall execute kings in the day of His wrath. 6 He shall judge among the nations, He shall fill the places with dead bodies, He shall execute the heads of many countries. 7 He shall drink of the brook by the wayside; Therefore He shall lift up the head.

Thus the kingdoms of this world have become the kingdom of our God.

Chapter 15 - The Goal of Life

What is the goal of your life?

What is God's purpose for you?

What potential has God built into your spirit, soul, and body?

What limitations are upon your life?

Is what you have been and done all the fullness of your God-given potential?

To this point mankind in general is not yet functioning in the fullness of our designed purpose and potential.

The lie of the serpent in the garden has grown into a cloud of thick darkness that has hidden from us the reality of who we really are and the potential we really have.

False belief systems have created a veil of darkness between man and God.

The enemy will do anything and everything that he can to keep you and me from the reality of who we really are and our God-given potential of the resurrection life of Christ in us with its power and authority.

The next great moving of God in restoring man fully to God will probably involve a much greater revelation of who we are and more of what God has prepared for those who love Him.

There is a deep longing in my heart to see the people who name the name of Jesus awakened to who we really are – to the fullness of potential that is available to every follower of Christ Jesus.

If I had only known.

I wonder if when we leave this life to reside in the heavenly realm with God if we might be shocked to see what we left undone and unused that was available to us in this life. Might we then be thinking, "Wow, if I had known what I see now, life could have been much greater. I could have been much more fruitful and productive in God's work. If I had only known."

Would Father God possibly reply something like, "I told you plainly through the written words of my Son and my apostles and prophets. I wanted to tell you clearly by my Holy Spirit, and I even sent prophets to speak confirmation of what I had prepared for you to walk in on earth. Why would you not hear and believe?"

The greatest and most joyful moving of God on Planet Earth is poised just past the end of our finger tips. It is "at hand" awaiting our hearing and believing the reality of

who we are and what God has allotted to our lives in this world to release the fullness of His LOVE upon the hearts and lives of the people on earth.

A Great Hunger

A fresh hunger is developing even now in this season in the hearts and lives of believers both in churches and out of churches. There is a longing for something more, something real and powerful. Most do not even know what it is for which they are hungering. This is not a new thing, but it is a thing that for some is becoming unbearable. The Pentecostal Charismatic moves of God have moved many out of their dormant place as pew sitting spectators. However, now for many the excitement of the charismatic revival and renewal has waned and is no longer satisfying our hunger.

Both those who never made the shift into Pentecostal and Charismatic moves of the Holy Spirit and those who did make that move are now both coming to a new place of hunger beyond their understanding. Neither more sitting listening to teaching and preaching, nor moving in the spiritual gifts with exuberant praise and intense worship can bring the desired fullness that satisfies all of our hunger. Even watching miraculous healings, deliverances, and spiritual manifestations will not fill our deep unfulfilled hunger for very long.

Personally I have experienced a deep satisfaction and fullness in my heart and life through receiving the revelation of the kingdom of God reality now in this life. Yet, even in this past week I have again began to feel a fresh hunger. Perhaps it is a vicarious hunger to some degree as I sense the lack in so many precious followers of Christ Jesus who seem to be parked by the roadside on their journey with God. But more than that, perhaps it is a hunger to truly come to know and experience ALL that God has prepared.

I feel a sense of revival type spirit as I experienced back in the 90s. Yet I know for a certainty that God does not want to reproduce the revivals of the past. There is an awakening that is greater than the great "first day" awakening to the cross, repentance from sin and being born again. It is also greater than the powerful "second day" awakening to the powerful works of the Holy Spirit gifts and return of the prophetic and apostolic works of God. There is a greatest awakening. **There is a "third day" awakening piling up in the heavens near earth ready to be released as a great flood covering the earth.** This is the deep hunger that is coming into the hearts of God's people.

What about those who have missed both the first and the second awakenings?

The lost generations of ungodly people multiplying rapidly on earth are not overlooked by God in this awakening. These along with the multitudes of religious church people and ex-church people of "first-day" and "second-day" believers are all full candidates for the moving of God in this greatest "third day" awakening that we are hungering for in this hour.

The Greater contains the lesser.

All that has been implanted and grown into place in the Body of Christ on earth in the past will all be inherited into the hearts of the ungodly who have not known God,

when they turn to God and receive the third-day fullness. They will not have to go through the same process as we may have gone through in the past. This last great move of God that will not wane is what the earlier moves were leading toward. They were like pieces of the puzzle that is completed in this final moving of God with us. Like those hired to labor in the field of the master, those who worked only one hour will receive the same wage as those who worked in the field the entire day (Mat 20:1-16).

All of what God has restored in the past will be encompassed in the "third-day" awakening. God through past history has been restoring and changing His people building toward the fullness that is fulfilled in the third-day outpouring, the "Tabernacle" of God with His people. His people will be holy and pure having no taste or desire for their past life. The fruit will be evident in the lives of the third-day New Jerusalem people. There will nothing enter in that defiles.

This is a sovereign work of God in and through His people.

The invasion of the Holy Ghost gliding into our hearts is hidden under the cover of the darkness that is now ruling in this world. The Holy Ghost of Christ Jesus is imparting the powerful fire of the all-consuming LOVE of God. LOVE is the all-consuming nature and the power of the continual presence of God in and with His people. LOVE is the primary characteristic of the manifesting (coming) of Christ in His Body now on earth.

The first two great awakenings poured out faith and hope. The third-day greatest awakening will pour out the pure holy Love of God that destroys all the works of the enemy, heals all of our past, and fills us with the powerful attributes of Christ Jesus.

Maturity comes quickly as the death of our old life is finished, and the fresh new love life of Christ Jesus with all faith and power overcomes the things of this world with the pure holy all-consuming love of God flowing in and through His chosen people. Thus the things of this earth become as it is in heaven. The King and His kingdom rule upon this earth, and the goal of this life is reached. The kingdoms of this world have become the kingdom of our God.

Do not fear, little flock, for it is the Father's good pleasure to give you His kingdom (Luke 12:32).

Are we ready for this greatest third awakening? Are we looking with great anticipation for this marvelous time of the manifestation and realization of Christ Jesus our Lord and King to fully tabernacle (dwell) within us and among us presenting Father God literally abiding with us? Can we grasp that this will mean the beginning of the end of life as we have known it on Planet Earth? Are we now spiritually awake enough to watch for this season of the greater fuller manifestation of God in us and with us?

He has come to us Spirit to spirit to abide in us and take us from this life to abide fully in Him now to rule and reign with Him on earth. The Lord God of heaven is with us now and is poised (at hand) to be poured out upon all who are ready and watching and then to be poured out upon the entire world.

32 "Do not fear, little flock, for it is your Father's good pleasure to give you the kingdom. 33 <u>Sell what you have</u> and give alms; provide yourselves money bags

which do not grow old, a treasure in the heavens that does not fail, where no thief approaches nor moth destroys. 34 For where your treasure is, there your heart will be also.

35 "Let your waist be girded and your lamps burning; 36 and you yourselves be like men who wait for their master, when he will return from the wedding, that when he comes and knocks they may open to him immediately. 37 Blessed are those servants whom the master, when he comes, will find watching. Assuredly, I say to you that he will gird himself and have them sit down to eat, and will come and serve them. 38 And if he should come in the second watch, or come in the third watch, and find them so, blessed are those servants.

39 But know this, that if the master of the house had known what hour the thief would come, he would have watched and not allowed his house to be broken into. 40 Therefore you also be ready, for the Son of Man is coming at an hour you do not expect."

The full manifestation of God with His people is now upon us, literally at the door. There are not words strong enough to truly communicate the magnitude of the season we have now entered.

Chapter 16 - Love Stronger than Death

I recently received a very encouraging email from a very dear friend. She was powerfully used of God in the exciting Charismatic moves of God in the past. I could listen to her for hours excitedly telling of the many supernatural experiences of those years of powerful ministry. God is still pouring fresh revelation into her in the last few weeks, and she is again overcome with His great love and intimate presence.

Here is a portion of her email:

Love Came Down

I would like to share an interesting incident with you. This incident happened about two weeks ago as I was driving. I had been hearing the verse from the Song of Solomon 8:6 over and over again in my spirit for several days and nights. It says in part, "Love is as strong as death." It was changed from "as strong as death" to "stronger than death." I was puzzled by what I heard. What I heard was "Love is stronger than death."

While driving along, I began to weep because the Spirit of God was so strong in the car. The famous story of the British officer and his greatly loved but fatally injured Gurkha aide was brought to my remembrance. As the story goes, in the middle of a fierce battle, the officer commanded the wounded Gurkha not to die. The wounds were definitely fatal as everyone knew. To the amazement of all, the Gurkha lived. It was definitely a miracle. As I pondered on this story, I felt the Holy Spirit was explaining to me that, from time to time, men were able to use spiritual truths even if they did not understand them. In this case, the strength of love conquered death. Sort of like the centurion in scripture who understood chain of command.

I was reminded of Acts 2:23-28 in the Amplified Bible."But God raised Him up, liberating Him from the pangs of death, SEEING THAT IT WAS NOT POSSIBLE for Him to continue to be controlled or retained by it....therefore my heart rejoiced...I saw the Lord constantly before Me, for He is at my right hand that I might not be shaken....You have made known to me the ways of life; You will enrapture Me { diffusing My soul with joy} with and in Your presence".

The rabbis would teach on the fact that joy and love were linked together. They also taught that joy was the opposite of fear. Many prophecies have been given about the outpouring of joy that will accompany the coming end time revival. The great love that is getting ready to be poured out will be stronger than death. Love was as strong as death under the Old Covenant, but under the New Covenant, love is STRONGER than death. And Jesus was the first fruits of that truth.

The Chinese Church started taking the street evangelists back to their homes after they had been shot by the soldiers and praying over them. They believed that their prayers could raise them from the dead. This is exactly what happened. The soldiers got tired of seeing the same guys preaching on the street, so they began hacking them to death with swords. I can't wait to hear the next news.

I kept weeping for a while over the revelation and what I saw in my spirit that would take place in the near future. LIFE MORE ABUNDANT. We are only beginning to understand what He meant by that statement. We are actually going to have to make each other take some rest. The results are going to be so exciting that it will be hard to stop and rest. Imagine going among veterans and seeing all of the arms and legs growing out. And that is just the beginning. We will be living continually "with and in His presence."

Love never fails. "The same Spirit that raised Christ from the dead lives in you." Let that Spirit grow and flow out of us. Blessing upon blessing to you. Miss you all,

Roz

We are only beginning to grasp what God has truly prepared for those who love Him. We are just now beginning to grasp something of the real POWER of LOVE. The strongest force in heaven and earth is the pure holy love of God.

The same love that has come by the Holy Spirit to saturate and overcome our lives with his pure sweet love. Love for God and love from God for one another that is beyond understanding. In the tangible presence of God, there is love manifested that takes over our spirit, soul, and body with energy from heaven and deep peaceful knowing and trusting in the presence of God permeating every part of our beings, transforming us from who we were into the life of Christ from heaven on earth.

There is no more death, as death cannot exist in the pure holy life of the love of God. The final victory over death involves the pure holy eternal love life of God indwelling and surrounding our lives. Nothing of death and evil can come near us as the pure love of God sets us apart from natural limitations into heavenly supernatural eternal love life. Truly all things are possible as we walk as one in Christ and Christ in us.

Who knew? How could we have ever guessed that love of God is the total answer for all issues of mankind on earth? What a marvelous beyond understanding transformation is this fulfillment of the work of Christ Jesus from His incarnation, perfect life, death on the cross, resurrection, ascension, and His return in the Holy Spirit to indwell all who will come to Him with their whole hearts with His abundant life now and eternally.

Now really, what is it in this life that is more important than experiencing this kingdom of God's love? Yes, everything else in life will be added; it will all come into place when we truly seek God's kingdom and His righteousness that all comes from and works by the love of God fully resting and abiding continually within us.

Honestly, is anything more valuable, more important than seeking the kingdom of God? What a tremendous key to open the door to all access to the reality of heaven now in this life and in the life to come. What a waste it has been to have spent hours, days, and years seeking needs and pleasures of this life - striving to gain what He has prepared for us from the beginning.

God is love, and love is life. This is the narrow and glorious way. There is no other way and no other life. All else is death. The greatest of everything in this world without God is only death – there is no life in it - no peace, no joy, and no righteousness. There is nothing outside of the love of God that is righteous.

Separation from God and the presence of His love is death. The finest things in the kingdom of darkness are death and are of no value. Every person who seeks to find his life without God will find only emptiness in the end. Existence in this world is without the pure holy love of God is worthless. This is why people kill themselves and one another; their existence is but one disappointment after another. The devil dangles a carrot of false value before them leading them to move further and further from the only true life in the presence of God's pure love.

THIS IS THE AWAKENING THAT MUST COME! Love is the force that will transform the people to transform the world. God's love is the only reason for continuing in this life. Multitudes coming under the umbrella of the all-powerful love of God is the power of the third great awakening. Nothing else will do the job. Now is the day of love that is stronger than death. Love destroys death and creates abundant life.

Now is the time for every one of us to turn from our wicked way of death in seeking the things of this world and seek God and His kingdom with our whole hearts. Nothing else will do what must be done. It is the power of the love of God that transforms evil darkness into glorious light. Come to His light – come to His love – lay it all down before Him – do not stop until His love has consumed you, and the world will be transformed around you and your path will be filled with light before you. You shall walk as Christ in the creative power to rebuild the old ruins into the glorious city of God on earth as it is in heaven.

The third-day awakening is an awakening to the pure holy love of God. There are some among us now as forerunners of this new day who are overcome and overflowing with the fullness of the POWER of LOVE. Inspired and empowered from heaven with the passion of the love of God that cannot be restrained. The liquid fire of God's love within is taking us to a whole new level of abandoned to love, leaving our past life behind to move with the cloud of His fire of love.

Who can describe the glory of His love consuming and transforming us from within?

Chapter 17 - Let Love Arise and Awaken Faith and Hope

Is there anyone else that sometimes feel that they would like to go back to the revivals, renewals, and outpouring of the 1990s and the hope-filled, faith, healing, and miracle revivals of the 70s and 80s? Those were indeed powerful encounters with God for many of us who have lived through those times. Yet we know that it is not God's plan to take us back to the moves of the past.

For many people the exciting reality of faith and hope in those past days has been seemingly swallowed up in the hopelessness and unbelief that is swamping the world today. The insanity of immorality, greed, violence, and evil of every sort that is becoming normalized in the failing cultures of the world is threatening to destroy all that is godly and good.

The world has seemingly been turned upside down, bottom side up, and backward by the intense widespread effort of the guidance and steering institutions that govern the people of the world. The higher learning institutions were first to be infiltrated, and then those trained by them led the culture into degradation.

The public educational systems and all mass media systems including news networks, all entertainment including TV and movies and every other form of training has been taken captive and used to twist the minds of the people into deadly ungodly ways of believing and living. The church systems that in the past seemed to have had some positive affect have over time been invaded and infected by the upside down and backward ways of the evil world systems. In the brunt of all this, faith and hope have faded and are in danger of becoming extinct among the people of the world including many Christians.

There is great need for an awakening of the past reality of faith in God and the written word that brings hope. We know that we could not and should not repeat or replicate the moves of God from the past. We do not need to go through the same abuses and imbalances that over time came forth from the impure hearts of men and negatively affected the past moves of God. However, we desperately need the God-given faith and hope that were prevalent in those times.

These things are the fundamental parts of the framework for the present work of God that is now moving among forerunners and is soon to flood the landscape of earth with the ways of heaven. **Faith**, **biblical word**, **and hope must be awakened and restored**.

The fresh moving of God today is focused on the missing ingredient that brought the past moves to their end. The missing major ingredient in the past moves that allowed them to become contaminated is the major ingredient in the fresh moving of God today.

The past moves brought power gifts, faith, hope, and an emphasis on the written word of God. However, the missing part that is now coming forth is the pure holy love of God permeating, filling and saturating every believer by the presence of God with us, in us, and around us. The LOVE manifesting in His people leaves no room for impurities such as immorality, greed, violence, and any other evil.

Love is the substance that causes faith and hope and all that God has given to man to work in perfect harmony and balance in an unrestrained release of the works of God on earth as it is heaven.

A people of God are arising in the all-consuming love of God.

The invasion of the Holy Ghost implanting the LIFE OF CHRIST JESUS and the PURE HOLY LOVE OF GOD into us in this day is awakening faith, hope, and fresh revelation of His written word. The life of Christ Jesus within us is bringing the excitement of a full out encounter with God and His love and power that removes all limitations from His maturing sons of the living God.

The very essence of God and life in God is pure holy LOVE. God is love and all things in His kingdom work by love and are held together by love. Love is the most powerful substance, force, or power in all of creation. His love invading our hearts will awaken faith and hope producing the tsunami of God that will transform us and our world. This is the moving of God with us that will not fade away.

There is a mystery about love in the lives of God's people. The mystery is that we may believe that God loves us and that we have all of His love. Only when the pure holy love invades us by the Holy Spirit and consumes our lives do we realize that we were not experiencing the real fullness of the love of God. It may not be possible to describe the real love of God invading and totally consuming our lives.

To try to put the reality of this third-day moving of His love into words with our limited earthly language is to me impossible. We need some new heavenly words to express in writing the reality of the consuming love invading and conquering our lives. It is so far beyond understanding and so absolutely beautiful and totally consuming while at the same time totally fulfilling. It is the true completion of perfect life in which there is absolutely no more pain, no more frustration or striving, and no more longing or needing of anything. The cares of this life seem to disappear in the captivity of His all-powerful, all-consuming love drawing us to remain in His presence and to pour out pure holy love to the world around us.

Rev 21:2-5: Then I, John, saw the holy city, New Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband. 3 And I heard a loud voice from heaven saying, "Behold, the tabernacle of God is with men, and He will dwell with them, and they shall be His people. God Himself will be with them and be their God. 4 And God will wipe away every tear from their eyes; there shall be no more death, nor sorrow, nor crying. There shall be no more pain, for the former things have passed away."

5 Then He who sat on the throne said, "Behold, I make all things new." And He said to me, "Write, for these words are true and faithful."

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 18 - A New Kind of Unity - The Oneness of Love

Every day is an adventure in this season of radical change and transformation that is taking place within God's people. Our natural minds and human tendencies that resist change are of no help in keeping up with the rapid spiritual metamorphosis some people are experiencing. Ordinary earthbound self-limited believers who may have already experienced their past lives being liquefied are being transformed into mature sons of God walking in the fullness of "Christ-in-us."

Our vocabularies may not contain words to adequately speak the magnificence of the new reality of Christ living in us walking out His life and doing things His way that is beyond natural understanding. Much of our belief systems along with their limitations are being dissolved. The methods and ways of the past era are beginning to fade from our lives and our ministries. Jesus in us simply does not do things exactly the way that we have been doing them in the past.

Many God-given ways of the past are beginning to pass from the scene as the most powerful force in the world is becoming a reality to the people of God. The pure holy LOVE of God is consuming our past and replacing it with our now of the perfect love of God in Christ by the Holy Spirit. This is the glory of the manifestation of Christ Jesus on earth.

The powerful presence of God in Christ Jesus is moving now upon the earth. There is nothing that can stand against the power of His pure love in His people. There is nothing else like the manifest love of God. Neither the enemy nor the works of man can replicate it. Our old life with its religious mixtures of light and darkness abiding in the heritage of self-focused and confused mentality of past generations cannot remain in the presence of God's love. The heritage of our religious forefathers grew worse in current generations and has taught us to worship self and seek life from many other false gods.

Praise God, our old mixtures are now finally being dissolved in us by the powerful presence of His love. This opens the way for more truth to flow into us and correct some areas that we may have thought were our best points.

When real love is fully in place, the war is over. Praise God there is peace at last and no more stressful warfare. Oh, yes, the enemy screams and kills and destroys all that he can. Yet he can do nothing in the fullness of the presence of God with us. He must flee or be liquefied in the fire of the presence of God and His love. In the past we did great battle with spirits of darkness, because we simply were walking in all we had at that time. We did not even always recognize that the fullness of the love of God had not yet consumed our lives, and we continued to do battle from an impure partial kind of limited love and sporadic limited power.

In this emerging invasion of the presence of God with us, our part is to love the people and pray for them. God and His holy angels (ministering spirits) do the work of changing the people. Even those who despise us and spitefully use us will be dealt with by God and His angels when we love them with His love and pray for them. The whole world is starving for real love, the pure holy love of God that manifests in practical reality of life in this world.

The great moving of God that is beginning is the undercover invasion of the Holy Ghost bringing an outpouring of the manifest LOVE of God. The great AWAKENING

OF LOVE is upon us. As with every move of God not everyone will receive what God is bringing to His people. And in this season of the beginning of the outpouring of love, the transition will be some here and some there while others will be slower to move and will continue to walk in parts of the old ways for a season while being adjusted and further cleansed of the past mixtures.

As we walk in His presence, His manifest love produces obedience to His clear voice within us. We will obediently speak what He is saying and be quiet where He is not speaking. We need not wrestle to find and know His will in all matters that present themselves before us. Our old habitual responses are leaving us as we are in continual connection with God and either hear His will or instinctively know by the Spirit His will for our actions and reactions in each situation that we encounter.

In my own personal life, this has been the most freeing thing for me to have finally received the heart revelation that it is not up to me to change people - - to really "get it" that my part is to love the people with His love and pray for them while always speaking the truth in love. The actual work of changing the people is the work of God only. It is not even God and me doing the work. Again our part is to walk in Him and Him in us manifesting His love and life into the world. As we do that His faith in us will speak the words of the Father releasing the Father's love in us to the people.

Oneness with God and man

Throughout history mankind has fully proven that there is nothing we can do to produce unity with one another. The more the church has striven to live in unity with one another, the more division has developed. Seemingly the best we have been able to do is separate into groups of those who mostly think like we do and walk together with a limited amount of agreement. Always eventually some will have disagreement with others and divide again and again. For me, in the past, when I heard someone calling for unity, I cringed and usually backed away from the futile endeavor.

The Lord even went so far as to say, "...if two of you agree on earth concerning anything that they ask, it will be done for them by My Father in heaven." Is this possibly because only as we become one in Him can two truly agree and as one with Him we ask only His will together as one?

Only as we individually become one with God in the love of His manifest presence – only after our lives are consumed in His love and His life abides in us by His Holy Spirit – only as we are dead to our life and alive in the purity and holiness of His love, can we ever live in unity with one another. This is the way of the release of the power of God to cleanse and renew the earth to the kingdom of our God. Nothing is impossible to those who believe - those who live by His faith and love. Literally the faith of Christ Jesus abides in us. It is not our faith but His faith in us.

I had often wondered why Paul said in Galatians 2 that he was dead but the life he lived now was by the <u>faith of the son of God</u>. Now in this season much of the scripture is becoming brilliantly clear as this moving of God of which there will be no ebb consumes us in His love.

Gal 2:20 KJV: I am crucified with Christ: nevertheless I live; yet not I, but Christ lives in me: and the life which I now live in the flesh I live BY THE FAITH <u>OF</u> THE SON OF GOD, who loved me, and gave himself for me.

The oneness of LOVE is producing a new kind of real unity in which some today are beginning to walk. The new unity is our becoming one Spirit with God and thereby one with those who are in Him. One love, one faith, one life of Christ who is all and in all. This is the reality of the potential of all the world becoming "in Christ." The one King in heaven and on earth head of all things in whom all thing consist. Love, God's love, is the substance by which all things are brought under the feet of Christ.

That in the dispensation of the fullness of the times He might gather together in one all things in Christ, both which are in heaven and which are on earth—in Him. Eph 1:10

And He put all things under His feet, and gave Him to be head over all things to the church, which is His body, the fullness of Him who fills all in all. Eph 1:17-22

To them God willed to make known what are the riches of the glory of this mystery among the Gentiles: which is Christ in you, the hope of glory. Col 1:27

Father, our hearts are overwhelmed with Your great love. We are consumed by Your presence in and with us. We are greatly humbled and passionately grateful that you chose to love us and abide with us.

Father, we are compelled by indescribable love to return all that You have given, all You have put within us, all that You have made us to be, every strength, every breath of life, every heartbeat, all that we are, and all that we have we lay at your altar of love. Father, we choose to empty ourselves of all of our past self-life so that the life of Your Son Christ Jesus may fully abide in us by Your Holy Spirit. Thank You God for receiving us into Yourself....

Chapter 19 - BEYOND "Revival Renewal Outpouring"

Truly revival, whatever you choose to call it, is one of my very favorite things in this world. Barbara and I were greatly blessed in the late 90s and early 2000s to be a part of the Smithton Outpouring, one of many places around the world where God supernaturally poured out His Spirit impacting multitudes across the world. Truly our lives were dramatically changed in that season of a mighty move of God. We really thought that nothing could ever be any better or more fulfilling than God meeting with us in such miraculous ways.

Every day it seems more and more believers are awakening to a fresh work of God that is beyond the awesome reality of the exciting life we experienced in those past moves. Some of the same results of the past moves will continue in this fresh moving of God. Yet there are some significant differences that far exceed the past.

There have been many major waves or moves of God in history, especially in recent history. Each of these moves brought increased restoration of God and His heavenly kingdom coming forth into the hearts and lives of His willing and spiritually hungry people. They were like powerful waves on the ocean. Each wave imparted its part of restoration and change and then flowed back out to sea leaving the people more prepared to receive the next part. Between the waves there was a space of relatively dormant time.

Why did the moves of God stop, and why was there a dormant season? Why could there not be a continuous flow of the moving of God progressively taking the people of God further into the fullness of restoration?

Personally, I do not believe that it was ordained of God for moves of revival, renewal, and outpouring to come to an end. Much like the children of Israel began the miraculous move from bondage in Egypt to the Promised Land. They could have entered directly into the land. God's best was for them to possess the land at that time, but their lack of faith and trust caused the move to turn away and wonder in the wilderness until a new generation was mature and ready. Then the next move began, or more accurately the continuation of the first move was completed.

Evidence is clear that the revival moves of God in recent history ended because of man not because of God. The tendency of man is to take charge and bring his control and structure to what God is doing. When that happens, the Holy Spirit who brought the move pulls away and the move of God ends until the next generation of people are hungry enough to make room for the Holy Spirit to bring the next part of the continuous moving of God.

After the Holy Spirit has pulled away, people often try to keep things going with their own strength using their own natural ingenuity. They devise programs and systems that become powerless religion that can be easily invaded by worldliness and spirits of darkness posing as angels of light. The religious work without the Holy Spirit can become as a stagnant pool in a dried up river.

THE GREAT NEWS

The moving of God that is now invading God's people contains the missing ingredient that allowed or caused all past moves of God to come to an end. The cure for the thing that prevented them from moving seamlessly into the next

part of revelation and impartation from heaven is now being sovereignly poured into God's willing hungry people.

If you have been following the <u>OpenHeaven.com Digest articles</u> over the past six months you know that the missing ingredient that is now invading us is the pure holy all-consuming LOVE of God at a level we have not known before. The fire of God's love is purifying our hearts from within by the Spirit of God. All that is in us that causes us to feel the need to control or structure things according to our satisfaction is being consumed in our becoming so in love with God that our lives are no longer our own. We literally are becoming one Spirit with God as His Holy Spirit imparts the life of Christ into us until we become one.

The move of God now coming forth is an invasion of the Holy Ghost imparting the all-consuming LOVE of God at a level we have not experienced in the past. The fire of this absolutely pure love completely purifies our hearts and lives.

It is truly Christ abiding in us - the end of all self-seeking and self-thinking.

We are truly consumed in love with God – so consumed in love with God that we finally completely love one another.

There is no battle with sin and self. We are truly crucified in Christ. It is His life and His faith that lives in us.

This move is internal. It is within and is a sovereign work of God alone by His Holy Spirit. It cannot be worked up; it simply is all there is.

It cannot be counterfeited or contaminated. Simply it will not become a mixture. Nothing can enter that defiles.

This is our truly becoming God's people and He becoming our God with us.

It is our becoming, by His pure holy love, completely cleansed to truly be one with God and one with every person who is truly in Him.

The pure love that consumes us is the ingredient that has been missing in all the past revivals that brought the gifts and miraculous works of God.

There is no end of God's love; it does not fail or fade away. It is fresh every morning. Therefore there is no end to this moving of God.

This moving of God is coming under the cover of darkness unseen by the fallen world and in the midst of cleansing judgment falling upon all in this world that lifts itself against God.

There is no fear of the darkness in this place of total love of God. Though thousands are destroyed around us, it will not touch us in His perfect love. Whether we live long or short lives in this earthly body is not the most important thing. Death has no sting for us and cannot touch the pure holy love of God's life in us.

This is the season of the reality of "God with us" in pure holy love – the tabernacle of God with His people.

This moving of God does not depend on organizations devised by men. It is within our hearts and rests solely in God. It is not dependent upon meetings or good preaching or corporate prayer or great music. Its only dependency is the fire of God's love consuming our hearts and lives.

How do I get there?

Probably the best way to consider that heartfelt desire of hunger is to first recognize that we do not do it – God does it, or it is not done.

However, we can possibly get ourselves into a position to receive what God is doing now. We probably all have a sense that our life as it has been will not survive the experience of becoming one with God by His invasion of pure holy love. It seems obvious that many things regarding our desires, thoughts, and priorities will endure significant change or perhaps transformation is a better word. The serious matter is that probably we cannot make ourselves really change or be transformed.

I am not sure any of us have the full answer. However, we know there are promises of God that if we seek Him with our WHOLE hearts. We are told to ask, seek, and knock. It matters who we ask and whom or what we seek and where we choose to knock. If we seek from religion or even our church or from anyone or anything other than God, we will be disappointed. A term that has been repeated by some is to become "a laid down lover of God." There may be some things involved in getting into position to receive. He did say you have not because you ask not.

That's all good, but how can this really happen for me?

How will God invade me with His Spirit? How will Christ actually be formed in me so that I truly experience His life and love? Probably only God knows the answers that are specific for each individual.

However, by experience we can know and share some things. Most likely very serious and devastating situations and circumstance will be involved. Emotional pain and extreme loss of people and things that we valued brings severe even deadly pain within as it leads us to the death of our past self-life. God will never move in until there is a sufficient space of emptiness available within us.

The intense pain within us is a major step in becoming a new creation of Christ in us. Some will choose to fight and resent the pain. These will become bitter and move toward separation from God. However, those who are in a seeking mindset when the pain comes will choose to forgive everyone involved including God, and instantly the consuming pure love of God in Christ by the Holy Spirit will flood into their hearts and lives.

This may happen over a period of time and move progressively as we ask and seek and keep on asking and seeking, and then when the door appears knock and the love of God will pour into us. There may be touches of God as many have experienced in the past revivals that make us aware of His goodness and the joy of being with Him in His presence. These experiences are preparation for the time of the invasion of love that God sovereignly pours into us as we become truly willing to die in His arms forever in the greatest love story ever told.

The darkness of severe tribulation upon the earth provides the pain and loss to accelerate the process of death to our past self-lives making room for the Holy Spirit of God to replace our past life with the true life of Christ. His holy love becomes who we are and what we do in this life and in the life to come. Truly God's invasion of pure holy love is the greatest love story of all time and creation. God is love.

If we live in the Spirit, let us also walk in the Spirit – Gal 5:25.

Chapter 20 - END OF THIS AGE

Many of God's prophetic people have been led to speak mostly of the glorious season of the kingdom. Probably most all know that the kingdom age could not manifest in the now passing age of the church as a major world influence. The Christian church has been the most significant good influence upon world governance and life. The British Empire carried the influence of Christianity to the world in its day of power. The United States of America carried the Christian influence to the world in its day of power. The history and success of both Britain and America, along with other nations, rested heavily upon Christianity and its biblical morality, judicial governance, and culture of life.

The age of Christianity was blessed of God and was known by some scholars as the dispensation of grace. Actually it was more mercy than grace, because God often used immature and impure Christians to spread the gospel of salvation and the baptism of the Spirit. The grace of God implies His empowerment to live holy lives. Christianity is not synonymous with kingdom and never was, though it was a part of preparation for the coming of the now emerging kingdom age.

We are now in the time of great and terrible transition from one age to another. The Bible speaks of it as great tribulation and describes cataclysmic events as characteristic of the season the world is entering. In our past many of us have endured extreme situations and the dissolving of much of our past lives along with seasons of wandering in a wilderness of uncertainty of direction and purpose. For many this has been a path of preparation for enduring the traumatic time of transformation to the kingdom age ruling and reigning in this world. However, only God can fully prepare us for the extreme times just ahead of the entire world.

We simply cannot expect the ways of life that we have known to continue into this time of world tribulation. Human nature is to do as the ostrich is said to do and stick our heads in the sand and hope the threat will go away. That may give us a false sense of peace for a very brief moment. However, it probably will not have good results. Only God can prepare us for the season of tribulation that is a part of this world transformation. However, we do have a part in willingly abiding, hearing, and obeying.

How do we prepare for the traumatic end of the age and the glorious kingdom age to rule and reign on earth?

First, it is good to remember that we are only a link in a very long chain of saints of God moving toward the kingdom of God on earth as it is in heaven. Many have already given their lives and suffered on this journey of redemption of mankind and Planet Earth along with all that is on it.

A part of the transformation of the earth to the rule of the kingdom is the elimination of all that stands against God. Everything that lifts itself against the kingdom of God will be changed or destroyed. All of the old ways that did not come from God and are not of the kingdom of God must be dissolved.

Much mixture that was allowed or tolerated during the past age will not enter the kingdom age. The day of religion is past. The Christian religion along with all other religions will not rule in the next age. All man-devised and man-centered mixture of worship of many false gods must be purged from the earth. Every person who enters

the kingdom age will have been cleansed of all allegiance to any other gods. No one will survive holding on to their false gods.

How is all of this possible?

Only as the people truly experience and see the magnificent one pure holy true loving and all powerful God will they abandon their false gods.

Encountering the reality of the love and power of the manifest presence of God will cause the people to turn to Him with their whole hearts. The past religious things could not do it. For the most part the way we have been will not do it. Only the manifest presence of God will do it.

The survival of many good people in and out of churches depends on the manifest Sons of God arising and demonstrating the love and power of the King and His kingdom.

SONS OF GOD ARISE, GET UP, BE ELECTRIFIED WITH THE LOVE AND POWER OF GOD BY THE HOLY SPIRIT, AND MOVE WITH THE ENTHUSIASM OF CHRIST IN YOU!

It is imperative that we abandon our doubts, our lax and lazy spiritual habits.

Do not be entrapped in the thing of waiting for God to do it, while He is telling us and showing us in the Spirit to MOVE OUT NOW and become who God has made us and called us to be.

Do not listen to the voice that says you are just doing this in your own flesh and you are trying to build your own kingdom. When we know what God is saying to us we must not be swayed by what others say.

A New Generation

How are we training the children of God? There is not time to train our young people to serve the same things we served in our past and then try to change them as we have had to be changed. If we are modeling for people basically the same stuff that was put into many of us, then they will be like we were.

If we will step up and step out into the spiritual reality of love and power of Christ Jesus and simply turn from our ways of the past unto the ways written in the Bible and offered now to all who will come to Him with their whole hearts, then there will be many who will survive the great and terrible transformation to stand in the full glory of the light of the glorious kingdom of God filling the whole earth.

There will be a generation of kingdom people on fire with the passion of God's love for this groaning creation. The powerful angels from heaven will work with the new generation of love and power-filled kingdom people.

There is at least one thing that God will not do. God will not fail to keep His word. God's promises may be the most solid reality in all creation. He has set you and me in this world to rule and reign with Him. He has chosen to work in and through mankind. We are His tools on earth to serve Him in perfect obedience to His leading

and by His empowerment. We will not listen to our own understanding or any other voice.

The children of Israel came to the place of entrance into the Promised Land but listened to another voice. God told them to enter in and possess the land. However, they chose to listen to the voice that said they could not do it. A short time later they relented and said we will obey, now we will go in. However, it was too late the opportunity had passed and all who had refused to go in died in the wilderness. Only when a new generation arose did they go in and possess the land.

This is our time to arise and obey the Lord and step out in extreme life of pure holy love and power moving in all confidence that what God has said, He will do. This is the season of powerful humility, but it is NOT the season for timidity.

Hear and Obey

Powerful change will be required on our parts as we allow God to have full reign in our lives. Old habits and ways of doing and being must be changed to His ways. This will only come as we encounter God in His presence with us and experience His love doing away with who we were and the life of Christ arising within us. We are not our own. We are His, and are bought with a price. The "Christ in us" life that we are entering is far greater and far more life than the best we ever had in the past.

Being in love with Him and watching His life change us and the one in front of us is like being a spectator and watching the mighty works of God. All of the reasons why we cannot do what God has said are dissolved by His life in us doing it as we watch it happen. As willing volunteers we move and speak and do, yet it is not us but Christ in us doing the will of the Father.

Abide, Hear and Obey,

Ron McGatlin

Ron & Barbara McGatlin

Ron and Barbara live in their modest home in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains in Mount Airy, North Carolina. Ron's prophetic writings can be found on His website www.openHeaven.com. He

website
www.OpenHeaven.com. He
can be reached by email at
basileia@earthlink.net or
contacted on Facebook.



The chapters of this book were first written for the OpenHeaven.com Digest, a weekly online prophetic publication, from March 20, 2014 to June 27, 2014.